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Mission Statement

B ARV fE D

Natural Beauty is dedicated to cultivate our staff, customers, students and franchisees to

appreciate our education, products and services, which are made by the love and kindness
of our founder, Dr. Tsai Yen-Pin, who made modern ladies beautiful, confident and wealthy.
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NE)EH
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Executive Directors
Dr. LEI Chien

(alias Joanna LEI) (Chairperson)
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan

(alias Ivan PAN)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung
Ms. LU Yu-Min
(alias Vicky LU)
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long
(alias Steve CHEN)
Mr. LU Chi-Chant
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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information
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(As at.26 March 2019 (“the Latest Practicable Date")
(R-F=AE=A—+AB (SEBETTES))

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35/F One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS
Bird & Bird

4/F, Three Pacific Place

1 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT
Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong
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LISTING INFORMATION

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00157

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
1 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Taiwan Cooperative Bank
No. 277, Section 3, Cheng Teh Road
Taipei

Taiwan

CTBC BANK Co,, Ltd.
8F, No. 168, Jingmao 2nd Road
Taipei

Taiwan

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Branch, Jingansi Sub-branch
1465 Beijing Road (W)

Shanghai

The PRC

China Minsheng Banking Corporation Limited
Shanghai Branch, Hongkou Sub-branch

1/F Gulf Building

53 Huangpu Road

Shanghai

The PRC

WEBSITE

www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite
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Financial Highlights
A T

Selected Financial Data PREHERE FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018
HKS'000 (except pershare data) ~ F87T (BREERS) —FT—=F ZZT-WF =—T-HF =T—F =ZT—+t§ =B-N\f
FHEE HHEE BHER BHEE YHEE MBEE

Revenue WA 439421 505,761 506913 475225 399,579 369,525
Cost of sales HEKA 106,321 116,981 109419 122,366 94467 146,665
Gross profit EH 333,100 388780 304494 352,859 305,112 222,860
Operating profit TERA 83,052 116,274 170392 196217 146738 39,157
Profit for the year RER R 58459 71480 136,830 148,403 105,388 26,259
Dividends RE 52,655 105,871 136,944 247660 112,117 29,031
Earning Per Share (EPS) - basic SRR AF| —EA §0.0290 $0.0360 $0.0680 $0.0740 500530 $0.0130
Dividend Per Share (DPS) SRS $0.0263 5005288 500684 501237 $0.0560 $0.0150
Return on Equity (ROE) BRAE R 74% 9.2% 18.7% 2.7% 16.2% 4.8%
Return on Assets (ROA) BEL® 6.0% 7.3% 154% 18.0% 13.5% 3.9%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

""IEJE*T m N oA

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overview

Turnover of the Group in 2018 decreased by 7.5% to HK$369.5 million compared
with HK$399.6 million in 2017. The decline was mainly due to a decrease of
HK$45.1 million in product sales, such segment contributed to 94.4% of the
Group’s total turnover.

Turnover in the PRC market decreased by 8.3% from HK$319.2 million in 2017 to
HK$292.7 million in 2018, turnover in the Taiwan market decreased by 5.1% to
HK$73.3 million compared with HK$77.2 million in 2017.

Sales from other regions, including Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau, increased
by 13.3% from HK$3.1 million in 2017 to HK$3.5 million in 2018. Contribution
from these regions remained at an insignificant level of just 1.0% of the Group's

turnover.

The Group's overall gross profit margin decreased from 76.4% in 2017 to 60.3%
in 2018 mainly due to the new beauty apparatus sold to franchisees in the third
and fourth quarters, which changed the revenue mixture of the Group's product/
beauty apparatus/service packages, and the offering of large promotional

discounts on the new spa and medical cosmetology services in 2018.

Bt % [ 8
L

REBz2EXBEBR_-_ZT - tFH
399,600,000 7T N Bk7.5% % — T — )\ FH
369,500,000/ 7T c BER A EFZHNERIFEE
EERL 045,100,000 70 © % D Sh A S E A&
EEAM94.4% ©

FEAEMSZEEEH-_ZT—tFH
319,200,000 7T T Bk83%ZE — T — )\ £ Hy
292,700,000/ 7T « BTS2 EX¥EAH T
— L F 177,200,000 7T TS 1%E T —N
E#973,300,00078 7T °

HEiipm (BEEE - HRAERBM) 28
%%ﬁhm 13.3% * B =& —+ 4 23,100,00078
TTREE T — )\ 23,500,000/ 7T ° :ZFi

REANEB L ETE 2 BRMEFEM - BhARE
B £ 581.0% °

REBZEBEBRENERH-_ZT—LFH
76.4%% 2= =T — \FM603% IEEEHQK
SER-T-N\FE= - WERMBEHEH
E’J%N&%% CBEER/EDER S RBEK

SAABEES KRR BREEBIRBRN

—E-)\ERERSHEREEME -
Turnover by activities REKE D CEERE 2018 2017 Changes
—B-N\E —+4F b=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER % FET % TET %
Products Em 348,728 94.4% 393,872 98.6% (45,144) (11.5%)
Services AR 20,797 5.6% 5,707 14% 15,090 264.4%
Total Bt 369,525 100.0% 399,579 100.0% (30,054) (7.5%)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Products

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of a range of
products, including skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic products, health
supplements and make-up products under the “Natural Beauty” brand and new
beauty apparatus. Product sales are the Group’s key revenue source and primarily
come from franchised spas, self-owned-spas and concessionary counters at
department stores. Product sales in 2018 amounted to HK$348.7 million, or
94.4% of the Group's total revenue, representing a decrease of HK$45.1 million
or by 11.5% when compared with product sales of HK$393.9 million in 2017. The
decrease in product sales was mainly driven by the decrease in turnover in such
segment in the PRC market by 13.3% to HK$273.9 million in 2018 compared
with HK$316.1 million in 2017, and the decrease in turnover in such segment in
the Taiwan market by 4.6% to HK$71.3 million in 2018 compared with HK$74.7
million in 2017.

Services

Service income is derived from the self-owned spas’ services, medical
cosmetology services, training and other services.

The Group provides skin treatment, beauty and spa services through its
self-owned spas. The Group's strategy is to establish self-owned spas as model
outlets in strategic locations to stimulate franchisees to join in. Currently the
Group has two self-owned spas and two self-owned medical cosmetology
centers in the PRC and three self-owned spas in Taiwan.

The Group does not share any service income generated from spas run by
franchisees under its current franchise arrangements. In 2018, service income
increased by 264.4% to HK$20.8 million compared with HK$5.7 million in 2017.
The increase in service income was mainly driven by the increase in turnover
of spa services and medical cosmetology service income by 366.0% to HK$19.5
million compared with HK$4.2 million in 2017.

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE W& DM
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B BB (@)
ES

REBEXZEUBAE] MEREREEES
Em- EARBHER - BEE®REMmE
EXNEREMRINEDERS - EMHEAN
EEFBWARE BEBRAMNBEKES
D BEKEKBERLEBERRZEE . =
T — \F 7 B fn 8 & B 32 348,700,000/ 7T (3K
IEAREE LI AG4%) BT —+F 7 ER
$H & %8393,900,00078 7T )& 45,100,000/ 7T 2k
115% ° EmBEER D> EEBRZD BRF
Bl K BEM 58 = F — £ 4F 2316,100,000% 7T
T #13.3%2 = F — /A4 2273,900,000/% 7T *
EEMIHEE T — 1 F 274,700,0007 7T T ¥
46%%E —F— \F 271,300,000/ TCATEL °

AR5

RIEWAIR B B B L ENEHORE - BEX
BIRH  3F 9 R E AR

AEEFEBEBEELKEPORHENEZ
B RRRIKERT o AKEZ KT B
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RUBNBEMAREKE - BT - AREEHE
REREMR B ELENKERORRREEE

BEARL - BEAREESREEEEKE
il -

RRITIMBLE R - AEETREDEMEE
EEIRBER LTS A RBRE - RZF—
NE - RBWER =T —+F 25,700,000/ 7T
12 1264.4%720,800,00078 7T + * E R KE
fRigE R EMBEEARBRAER T —+F
24,200,000 T3 AN366.0%2E 19,500,000/ JT °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWR DM
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) BB EE (@)
Service income PR Uk = 2018 2017 Changes
S S i 23
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET % FAT % FAT %
Training income e 423 2.0% 471 8.2% (48) (10.2%)
Spa/Medical cosmetology 7kfEE B EER
service income b e 19,536 94.0% 4192 73.5% 15,344 366.0%
Others Hih 838 4.0% 1,044 18.3% (206) (19.7%)
Total @t 20,797 100.0% 5,707 100.0% 15,090 264.4%
Turnover by geographical region Ribi B D 2 & 2018 2017 Changes
—B-N\E ZT—tF gL
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FHET BT BT %
PRC R Bl R BE
Products B 273,940 (42,145) (13.3%)
Services AR7 18,735 15,592 496.1%
PRC Total B RPES T 292,675 (26,553) (8.3%)
Taiwan =91
Products B 71,253 (3,415) (4.6%)
Services R7S 2,062 (502) (19.6%)
Taiwan Total At 73,315 (3,917) (5.1%)
Others Hith
Products Eh 3,535 416 13.3%
Services R 7 - - -
Others Total Higasct 3,535 416 13.3%
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
The PRC Market

The Group’'s turnover in the PRC market decreased by 8.3% in 2018 to HK$292.7
million compared with HK$319.2 million in 2017. The decrease was mainly due
to decline in the sales of products. Gross margin on product sales decreased
from 80.0% in 2017 to 64.2% in 2018. The key reasons are the changes in the
mixture of products with different marginal gross profit and the revenue mixture
of the Group’s product/beauty apparatus/service package, and the offering of
large promotional discounts on the new spa and medical cosmetology services
in PRCin 2018

The Taiwan Market

The Group's turnover in the Taiwan market decreased by 5.1% from HKS$77.2
million in 2017 to HKS$73.3 million in 2018 due to the decline in the sales of
products. Gross profit margin on product sales in 2018 was 77.6%, which was in
line with thatin 2017.

Other income and other gains

Other income and other gains decreased by 37.3% from HK$12.9 million in 2017
to HKS$8.1 million in 2018, mainly due to the decrease of interest income and
financial refunds in 2018 by 30.2% and 46.7% respectively compared with 2017.
Other income and other gains mainly comprised interest income, rental income
from investment properties, financial refunds of HK$3.0 million, HK$2.3 million
and HK$2.2 million respectively in 2018.

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE W& DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Selling and administrative expenses

Distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of the Group's turnover
increased to 32.5% in 2018 compared with 25.3% in 2017. The distribution and
selling expenses increased by HK$19.3 million from HK$100.9 million in 2017
to HK$120.2 million in 2018. Salaries increased by HKS$7.8 million from HK$41.6
million in 2017 to HK$49.4 million in 2018. Other key expenses included new
products/business launching events and customers' training session expenses
of HK$12.7 million, advertising expenses of HK$7.8 million, depreciation charges
of HK$3.8 million, transportation charges of HK$5.7 million as well as rentals of
offices of HK$8.9 million in 2018.

Total administrative expenses increased by HK$8.5 million, or 13.9%, to HK$70.0
million in 2018 compared with HK$61.5 million in 2017. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised staff costs and retirement benefits of HK$20.1 million, legal
and professional fees of HK$11.8 million, depreciation charges of HK$9.0 million
and office and utilities expenses of HK$4.8 million in 2018,

Other expenses and other losses

Other expenses and other losses decreased by HK$1.5 million, from HKS$5.4
million in 2017 to HK$3.9 million in 2018. Other expenses and other losses mainly
included exchange loss of HK$1.3 million, loss of HK$0.97 million on disposal of
property and related expenses of rental property of HK$1.6 million in 2018.

Profit before tax

Taking into account the decrease in gross profit and other income, and the
increase in selling and administrative expenses, profit before tax decreased by
73.3% from HKS$146.7 million in 2017 to HK$39.2 million in 2018, and the pre-tax
profit margin decreased to 10.6% in 2018 from 36.7% in 2017.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Taxation

Taxation expenses decreased by HK$28.5 million to HK$12.9 million in 2018
compared with HKS41.4 million in 2017. The effective tax rates of the Group in
2017 and 2018 were 28.2% and 32.9% respectively.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year decreased by 75.1% from HK$105.4 million in 2017 to HK$26.3
million in 2018.

Liquidity and financial resources

Cash generated from operating activities in 2018 was approximately HK$76.7
million (HK$21.2 million in 2017). As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank
balances and cash of approximately HK$181.0 million (HK$288.9 million as at 31

December 2017) with no external bank borrowing.

In terms of gearing, as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018, the
Group's gearing ratios were zero (defined as net debt divided by shareholders’
equity) as the Group was in a net cash position on both year-end dates. Current
ratios of the Group (defined as current assets divided by current liabilities) as
at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 were 4.3 times and 2.8 times
respectively. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities, other than those disclosed in its financial statements and the notes
thereto. With the cash and bank balances in hand, the Group’s liquidity position
remains strong to meet its working capital requirements.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Treasury policies and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

Most of the Group's revenues are denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and New
Taiwan Dollars (“NTD") as its operations are mainly located in the PRC and
Taiwan. As at 31 December 2018, approximately 72.4% (79.0% as at 31 December
2017) of the Group's bank balances and cash was denominated in RMB, while
approximately 21.5% (16.9% as at 31 December 2017) in NTD. The remaining
6.1% (4.1% as at 31 December 2017) was denominated in US Dollars, Hong Kong
Dollars and Malaysian Ringgit. The Group continues to adopt a conservative
approach in its foreign exchange exposure management. The Group reviews its
foreign exchange risks periodically and uses derivative financial instruments to
hedge against such risks when necessary.

BB EE (@)
ERRERAASEZEBRKR

ERAEEEBETEMNRPRAREREE @ i
HXBHBWATIAARE (AR EFa
B ((Hae)fE - RZE—NF+ZA=
+—B EAKBEZRTEGERRESF O
724% (RZE—+F+ZA=1+—R7%79.0%)
NAREE BH215% (R_T—tF+
ZHAH=ZT BRI EBEE- BT
6.1% (RZZE—tF+ZA=1+—HAR41%H|
AZET - BT RERADEE -  AEEEE
FOMER S BIEAIEER R - EERFEA
AEZZINERK - WHBRERFERITES R
TR EBERR

BUSINESS REVIEW E 3 AC1) -
Distribution channels DEEEE
Self-owned
Franchisee- Self- Self- Medical
REREED owned owned Total  Entrusted owned Total Cosmetology
Store Number by Ownership 2 JE5#E Spa Spa Spa Counter Counter Counter Center Total

hEEEE  BpELE  kEPL  ZREE pEAE Ef REEEZ

KERD KB )

gl gif & XRR it

As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E

+ZA=1+-H
PRC REARE m 2 775 0 14 14 2 791
Taiwan =) 241 3 244 0 0 0 0 244
Others Hitp 27 0 27 0 0 0 0 27
Total st 1,041 5 1,046 0 14 14 2 1,062
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) XKERE
Distribution channels (Continued) DEHEE (B)
Franchisee- Self- Self-
owned owned Total Entrusted owned Total
Store Number by Ownership B D 2 Spa Spa Spa Counter Counter Counter Total
MBEHEE BALE KERL g BALE 2if
KB KB @t S ES & &
As at 31 December 2017 W-E—+&
+-F=1+-8
PRC ETYNS 79 2 798 0 14 14 812
Taiwan ag 246 3 249 0 0 0 249
Others it 30 0 30 0 0 0 30
Total & 1072 5 1077 0 14 14 1,091
2018 2017
2018 2017 Average Average
Average Average sales per sales per
Average sales perstore  BREEHTIIHER store* store* store store Changes
—E-N\E —T+F
—E-N\E —T+F SEEH SRES
EHTHYE: EETOUEr THUHEE  THHEESR 23
HK$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT %
PRC REIARRE 801.5 806.0 365,000 396,000 (31,000) (78%)
Taiwan =y 246.5 2505 297,000 308,000 (11,000) (3.6%)
Group total** SR 1,048.0 10565 349,000 375,000 (26,000) (6.9%)

*

total)/2

*%

Malaysia.

Average store number is calculated by (opening period total + closing period *

Group total does not include turnover and store count in Hong Kong, Macau and ~ «x

THEMEE A Ry @ +BRE) 2
AHE

SEBHATBENEE  RFRSRAERZ
EEBREMEAE -
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Distribution channels (Continued)

The Group derives its income principally from its network of distribution
channels, including spas and concessionary counters in department stores. As at
31 December 2018, there were 1,046 spas, 2 medical cosmetology centers and
14 concessionary counters. Of these, 1,041 were franchised spas, while 5 spas,
2 medical cosmetology centers and 14 concessionary counters were directly
operated by the Group. No concessionary counters were entrusted to third-party
operators. Franchised spas are owned by the franchisees who are responsible for
the capital investment in these spas. They are obliged to use only Natural Beauty
or “NB" products in their spas. A wide array of services including hydrotherapy,
facial treatment, body care and skin care analysis, are provided in all spas, while
skin care analysis is widely available at the concessionary counters in department
stores.

Group-wide, a total of 42 new stores and 2 medical cosmetology centers were
opened and 73 stores were closed during the year ended 31 December 2018.
Average sales per store decreased from HK$375,000 in 2017 to HK$349,000 in
2018.

Research and Development

The Group puts significant emphasis on research and development which
allows it to maintain its competitive edge, to continuously improve the quality
of its existing products and develop new products. The Group has been
collaborating with overseas skin-care companies on technological development.
The bio-technology materials the Group uses for its NB products are imported
from Europe, Japan and Australia. The Group's research and development team
comprises a number of overseas consultants with experience and expertise in
cosmetics, medicine, pharmacy and bio-chemistry. NB products are constantly
enhanced and modified by the application of new ingredients developed by the
team. The Group draws on its collaboration of experts with different expertise
and experiences, together with Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu's 40-year-plus industry experience
and knowledge to continue to create high-quality beauty and skin care products.
NB principally uses natural ingredients to manufacture products and adopts
special formulae to cater to the specific needs of women with delicate skin. NB
products accommodate the natural metabolism of skin with long-lasting effects.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Research and Development (Continued)

Natural Beauty has collaborated with a leading researcher in the field of human
genome and stem cell technology for the development of an anti-aging NB-1
product family and other products for spot removal, whitening, allergy-resistance
and slimming. The stem cell technology is patented in the United States to
protect the uniqueness of the NB-1 products.

Products

In 2018, the Group's flagship NB-1 products accounted for 46.9% of total product
sales and its sales reached HK$163.7 million in 2018. During 2018, the Group had
successfully launched a new series of NB-1 Bright-Crystal target products, the
sales of which achieved HK$43.5 million in PRC, accounting for 12.5% of total
product sales.

Through continuous research and strategic planning for the beauty market, the
Group has successfully launched the new beauty apparatus for the franchisees,
thereby enhancing the status of the Group in the beauty and spa market. In
2018, sales of new beauty apparatus achieved HK$37.5 million, accounting for
10.7% of total product sales.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 511 employees, of whom 400
were based in the PRC, 109 in Taiwan and 2 in other countries and regions. Total
remuneration (excluding directors’ emoluments) in 2018 was approximately
HK$105.7 million (HK$96.0 million in 2017), including retirement benefit related
costs of HKS$17.1 million (HK$16.3 million in 2017). Competitive remuneration
packages are maintained to attract, retain and motivate capable staff members

and are reviewed on a regular basis.

The Group maintains good relations with its employees and is committed to
their training and development. Professional training courses are offered to
beauticians employed by the Group and to franchisees on a regular basis.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Capital Expenditures

The Group's capital expenditure of HK$51.8 million in 2018 was mainly related to
the new plant construction in the PRC amounting to HK$35.5 million, opening of
new stores, renovation and equipment amounting to HK$7.0 million, office and
self-owned spa centre renovation amounting to HK$6.4 million, motor vehicles
amounting to HK$1.1 million, production equipment amounting to HKS$0.2

million, IT infrastructure amounting to HK$0.5 million.

OUTLOOK

As a new addition to the EMI Group in Taiwan, a leading group of enterprises
specialized in media, virtual retail, real estate, and entertainment content
production in Taiwan, we are now able to leverage the resources of the EMI
Group to boost up our core beauty and skincare business and to develop new
business covering bio-tech beauty/medical cosmetology, e-commerce and
to-customer businesses. For instance, with the resources of Eastern Housing
and ETToday News Cloud, we can further promote online-to-offline integrated
marketing; while Eastern TV Shopping's product development and marketing
resources can be combined with our R&D resources. With additional resources
and greater talent pool available from the EMI Group, our Directors believe that
the Group is well-positioned to reach another significant milestone in 2019,

Scale up strategies:

- Accelerate the opening of new stores in the identified cities. Opening new
direct-sale stores in department stores/shopping malls with high footfall
can reinforce the brand’s premium image and boost up revenue from
direct-sale stores rapidly.

- Speed up the increase of the number of franchisees in tier 3 and 4 cities.

- Build the “Natural Beauty bio-tech-based industrial park” in Fengxian
District of Shanghai. The park is under construction and is expected to be
completed in mid 2020. It will incorporate bio-tech lab, production base,
Research and Development ("R&D") center, logistics center, warehouse
and office, which will bring our bio-tech expertise, manufacturing ability
and production capacity to the next level to support the rapid expansion

of our business.
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OUTLOOK (Continued) B2 (&)

BOERMAR

Scale out strategies:

Develop new product lines for e-commerce business to build brand
awareness among young consumers via on-line as well as off-line
channels outside our franchisee stores.

Team up with industry leader to advance in the medical cosmetology
market. A partnership with top player of the medical cosmetology market
will enable the Group to build expertise in medical cosmetology and
deploy the offline model in 2019.

Expand our R&D team and engage the EMI Group's business partners

BRINERR  BBREHEEARK
PIETE R ARPIE AN B B R E 45 F 88
MBEE  RRFEHRBELTHEMK
an i o

—NFBEABEXETEE - -
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specialized in developing high-quality food supplements to diversify our
product offerings for consumers.

BAXBFESWEEPENLTERE
HE EEERERMNERBEHER B
RAREEETHHABOEXR  EAUlt
—KEER - KBERANZEREE AR
TRERMANEE  REENHRMZTE
UL

- Bring Strawberrynet, the cross-border e-commerce platform newly -
acquired by the EMI Group, and an internationally famous brand name to
our customers in our website stores with a view to increasing our revenue

and diversifying our business.

Branding Strategies: mEREE

MAMEREREA  2HEENEESTT

HETE I AEREMITE MM - MKE
& B LR EDRE o

- Engage a top artist or celebrity as our brand spokesperson to endorse -
the brand, along with a comprehensive marketing plan with a view to
creating a wider brand awareness and stimulating growth in the number
of new consumers.

BAXEYRIBRERAT —T-N\FFH 23



ort on Corporate Governance

> %
0
I
K
et
>dd
It

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company firmly believes that strong corporate governance is the foundation
to delivering the corporate objective of maximizing return to its stakeholders
over the long term. The core of the governance structure is an effective and
qualified Board of Directors (the “Board”) which is committed to maintaining a
high standard of corporate governance, sound internal control and effective risk
management to enhance transparency, accountability, integrity and honesty, in
order to earn the confidence from our shareholders and other stakeholders and
to safeguard the interests of shareholders.

The Board had adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines (the “CG Guidelines”)
(available on the Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/

irwebsite) which gives guidance on how corporate governance principles are

applied to the Company.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year 2018, save as explained and
disclosed hereinbelow, the Company applied the principles and complied with
all the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The following summarizes the
Company’s corporate governance practices and explains deviations, if any, from
the CG Code.

In addition to complying with applicable statutory requirements, we aim to

continually review and enhance our corporate governance practices in light of
local and international best practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS
Al.

Report on Corporate Governance
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AATMEEEARER
A. EE

Directors’ Attendance and Training Records Al ESHFERIEIIEHE
The Board currently comprises nine members, consisting of EFSHMNEBKEEN  EFE
two Executive Directors, four Non-executive Directors and three EMEHNTES WEINITES
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Board meets four times R=ZBIUIFPTES -EFEE
during a year as a minimum and, during 2018, it met six times. FERLBITNREGE  RZZT—N
Details of composition of each of the Board Committees, the FEITTAREGH - HE-_ZT—N
Directors’ attendance records at the meetings of the Board and FHT_A=+T—HLFER  FE
each of the Board Committees and the general meeting as well as EFELZEGINEMENFE - BlL
the Directors' training records during the year ended 31 December EENEFEEE SHEEFZEE
2018 are as follows: EEEMBRRREG 2 HERE - U
NEEEIEHFOT
Remuneration Audit  Executive Nomination Annual
Committee  Committee ~ Committee ~Committee ~ Board ~ General Training
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting  Meeting  Course
FMZRE BHZEE #UZRE RHEZET FERE RREF
EE ] E ] EE g3 g3 g #B
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta" BEELAED n/a /a 444 ”n 44 01 Notea
Gl o ilii fifita
Dr. U Chien-Cheng? EEaELY 22 n/a 4/4 /3 44 N Notea
aili NER fifita
Dr.LEl Chien® EEELY -/~ n/a /- /1 2 -/~ Noteb
TEA b
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan® BRALEY -/ a /- 1/1 0 - Noteb
oy lii FitiED
Non-executive Directors FunES
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu EERELY n/a n/a 44 112 5/6 01 Notea
TEm TER ifita
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu® BapELe 12 2”3 44 /3 34 01 Notea
NER Misa
Mr. HSIAQ Wen-Chung” BT /a na n/a /a 0 -~ Noteb
TEA TEA TR TEA fifsto
Ms. LU Yu-Min® BEmRzLe n/a n/a - n/a /1 -~ Noteb
TR TER TEA b
Ms, LIN Shu-Hua® IR0 n/a 11 - n/a 11 -~ Noteb
TEm TER fitith
Independent Non-executive Directors BV FHTES
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long FRimE A 33 5/5 n/a 33 6/6 01 Notea
TiEm Mitta
Mr.LU Chi-Chant ERERE 33 5/5 a 33 6/6 o1 Notea
Tam fita
Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang'"” HAE L 33 44 n/a ” 5/5 01 Notea
TR Wit
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien(" BHEED /- 1/1 a 11 1/1 -~ Noteb
TR fitzth
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Al.

Directors’ Attendance and Training Records (Continued)

Those Directors who were not able to attend the Board and

Committee meetings in person could appoint another Director

as their respective proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf.

For indication purpose, attendance by proxy was not counted as

attendance by the Director himself/herself in the above summary.

Notes:

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta resigned as an Executive Director, the Vice Chairman
of the Board, the Chairman of the Executive Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee on 16 November 2018.
Four Board meetings, four Executive Committee meetings and one
Nomination meetings were held before 16 November 2018.

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng resigned as an Executive Director, a member of
the Executive Committee and the Remuneration Committee on 16
November 2018. Four Board meetings, four Executive Committee
meetings and two Remuneration Committee meetings were held
before 16 November 2018,

Dr. LEI Chien was appointed as an Executive Director and the
Chairperson of the Board on 26 October 2018. She was subsequently
appointed as the Chairperson of the Executive Committee, a
member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee on 16 November 2018. Two Board meetings were held
after 16 November 2018. One Nomination Committee meeting was
held after 16 November 2018. No Executive Committee meeting
and Remuneration Committee meeting was held after 16 November
2018.

Mr. PAN Yi-Fan was appointed as an Executive Director on 26 October
2018. He was subsequently appointed as a member of the Executive
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee on 16 November 2018. Two Board meetings were held
after 26 October 2018. One Nomination Committee meeting were
held after 16 November 2018. No Executive Committee meeting
and Remuneration Committee meeting was held after 16 November
2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A1. Directors’ Attendance and Training Records (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

©)

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu was an Executive Director and the Chairperson of
the Board until she was re-designated as a Non-executive Director
and stepped down from being the Chairperson of the Board on 26
October 2018. She has been appointed as an Honorary Chairperson
of the Company on the same day. She subsequently ceased to be a
member of the Nomination Committee and remained as a member
of the Executive Committee on 16 November 2018. Two Nomination
Committee meetings were held on or before 16 November 2018.
She resigned as a Non-executive Director and a member of Executive
Committee and remains as the Honorary Chairperson of the
Company on 25 January 2019.

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu resigned as a Non-Executive Director, a member
of the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee on 16 November 2018. Four Board
meetings, four Executive Committee meetings, three Audit
Committee meetings and two Remuneration meetings were held
before 16 November 2018,

Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung was appointed as a Non-executive Director
on 26 October 2018. Two Board meetings were held after 26 October
2018.

Ms. LU Yu-Min was appointed as a Non-executive Director and a
member of the Executive Committee on 16 November 2018. One
Board meeting was held after 16 November 2018. No Executive
Committee meeting was held after 16 November 2018.

Ms. LIN Shu-Hua was appointed as a Non-executive Director and a
member of the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee on
16 November 2018. One Board meeting and one Audit Committee
meeting were held after 16 November 2018. No Executive
Committee meeting was held after 16 November 2018.

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee, a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee on
16 November 2018. Five Board meetings, four Audit Committee
meetings, two Nomination Committee meetings and three
Remuneration Committee meetings were held on or before 16
November 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Al.

Directors’ Attendance and Training Records (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(11)  Mr. YANG Shih-Chien was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee, a
member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
on 16 November 2018. One Board meeting, one Audit Committee
meeting and one Nomination Committee meeting were held after
16 November 2018. No Remuneration Committee meeting was held
after 16 November 2018.

(@) Attended training course conducted by Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu that was organized by the Company and/or received
training materials provided by the Company.

(b) Attended other continuous professional development training
course(s) that was/were not organized by the Company.

The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda of regular
Board meetings at least 14 days in advance. Directors are consulted
to include any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings.
For other Board and Committee meetings, notice is generally given
pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) and
the respective Charters of the Committees.

The agenda of Board meetings or Committee meetings and
the accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors at least
three days before each Board meeting or Committee meeting
for their review and to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company so as to
enable them to make informed decisions.

All Directors have access to the Chief Legal Counsel and the
Company Secretary who are responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures are complied with and advising the Board on corporate
governance and compliance matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Al.

Directors’ Attendance and Training Records (Continued)

Draft minutes will be sent to Directors and Board Committees
members within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days)
after each meeting and are available for review and inspection by
Directors and Board Committee members.

The CG Guidelines allow Directors to take independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses.

Instead of by way of circulation, full Board meetings will be held
for any material transaction with connected persons. Independent
Non-executive Directors who, and whose associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at such

meeting.

The Company’s Articles provide for voting and quorum
requirements conforming with the requirements of the CG Code.

We have also arranged appropriate insurance cover on Directors'
and officers'liabilities in respect of legal actions against them arising

from corporate activities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A2.

Chairperson, Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu served
as the Chairperson until 26 October 2018 and Dr. LEI Chien was
appointed as the Chairperson on the same day. Mr. LEE Ming-
Ta was the Vice Chairman until his resignation as an Executive
Director on 16 November 2018. Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung served
as the Chief Executive Officer until his resignation on 9 July 2018
and Ms. YANG Shu-Hwa was appointed as Interim Chief Executive
Officer of the Group on the same day and tentatively held office as
Chief Executive Officer. On 26 October 2018, Ms. Yang resigned as
such post and Ms. LIN Yen-Ling was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer. The roles of the Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer are
separate. The Chairperson focuses on Group strategic and Board
issues while the Chief Executive Officer has the overall responsibility
for operations and development.

The Chairperson has a clear responsibility to provide the whole
Board with all information relevant to the discharge of the Board's

responsibilities.

Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the chairman should at least
annually hold meetings with non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) without the executive
directors present. The Chairperson met the non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) once without
the presence of the Executive Directors during the year ended 31
December 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
DIRECTORS (Continued)

A.

A3.

Board composition

The list of all Directors is set out under “Corporate Information”
on page 2 of this Annual Report. Composition of the Board, by
category of Directors, including names of the Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
are disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the

Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board, at all
times, met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors, representing at least one-third of the Board with at least
one Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of our Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. We consider
all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13

of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A4.

Appointments, re-election and removal

Directors with service contracts or letters of appointment, including
Executive and Non-executive Directors, usually serve three-year
terms or one-year term, and are subject to re-election.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Articles, any new Director
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election. Dr. LEI Chien, Mr. PAN Yi-Fan, Mr. HSIAO Wen-
Chung, Ms. LU Yu-Min, Ms. LIN Shu-Hua, Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang and
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien will hold office until the forthcoming annual
general meeting ("AGM") according to the Articles.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Articles, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then a number not less than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation at each AGM. Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long will
retire by rotation according to the Articles.

All of the above-mentioned directors, being eligible, will offer

themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

To further enhance accountability, any appointment of an
independent non-executive director who has served on the Board
for more than nine years will be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. We will state in the related
circular and notice of the AGM the reason why we consider the
independent non-executive director is still independent and our
recommendation to shareholders to vote in favour of the re-
election of such independent non-executive director. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, none of the existing Independent
Non-executive Directors has served on the Board for more than

nine years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)

Disclosure of Information of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

A4.

Directors’ Positions Held
On 26 October 2018:

0]

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu was redesignated as a Non-executive
Director of the Company and stepped down from being the
Chairperson of the Board;

Dr. LEI Chien was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company and the Chairperson of the Board,

Mr. PAN Yi-Fan was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company; and

Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company.

On 16 November 2018:

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta resigned as an Executive Director, the Vice
Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of the Executive
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company;

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng resigned as an Executive Director, a
member of the Executive Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company;

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu resigned as a Non-Executive Director, a
member of the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company;

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang resigned as an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company;

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu ceased to be a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company;

Dr. LEI Chien was appointed as the Chairperson of the
Executive Committee, a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A4.

Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)
Disclosure of Information of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules (Continued)

Directors’ Positions Held (Continued)
On 16 November 2018: (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Mr. PAN Yi-Fan was appointed as a member of the
Executive Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee;

Ms. LU Yu-Min was appointed as a Non-executive Director
and a member of the Executive Committee of the Company;

Ms. LIN Shu-Hua was appointed as a Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee and the Executive
Committee of the Company; and

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

On 25 January 2019:

(0

(if)

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu resigned as a Non-executive Director and a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company; and

Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang was appointed as a Non-executive
Director and a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company.

During the year and up to the Latest Practicable Date:

0]

(if)

Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung, a Non-executive Director of the
Company, ceased to act as a director of Shanghai Natural
Beauty Company Limited* (/& B A EWEHEBR A F)),
Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli Cosmetics Co, Ltd* (/& B %4

ERMRAR AR and Shanghai Natural Beauty Bio-
Med Company Limited* (E/8BAEEMBEZERAA);
and

Each of Dr. LEI Chien and Mr. PAN Yi-Fan, Executive Directors
of the Company, was appointed as a director of some of the
Company's subsidiaries.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A4,

Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)

Disclosure of Information of Directors and Chief Executive Officer

pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules (Continued)

Approval of Director’s Service Contract
On 16 November 2018:

(i)

Ms. LU Yu-Min and Ms. LIN Shu-Hua, the Non-executive
Directors, and Mr. YANG Shih-Chien, the Independent Non-
executive Director, entered into Director’s service contracts/
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
one year commencing on 16 November 2018. Please refer
to the joint announcement dated 16 November 2018 for
the requisite disclosure of the service contracts/letter of

appointment.

Dr. LEI Chien and Mr. PAN Yi-Fan, the Executive Directors and
Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung, the Non-executive Director, entered
into Director’s service contracts with the Company for a term
of one year commencing on 16 November 2018. Pursuant to
the service contract, each of the aforementioned Directors is
entitled to a Director’s fee of HK$1,000,000 per annum and
a discretionary bonus to be determined by the Board at its
sole discretion provided that the aggregate amount of bonus
payable to all the Directors (including executive and non-
executive Directors) in the financial year will not exceed 15%
of the audited consolidated profits of the Group attributable
to shareholders (after tax and minority interests but before
extraordinary items) for that financial year. The Director’s
fee payable to each of the aforementioned Directors was
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
confirmed by the Board with reference to their duties,
responsibilities and performance and results of the Company,
and shall be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee from
time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A4.

Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)

Disclosure of Information of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules (Continued)
Renewal of Director’s Service Contract

On 16 November 2018:

(i)  the Board approved the renewal of the letter of appointment
of Mr. LU Chi-Chant as Independent Non-executive Director,
for another term of one year commencing on 18 December
2018; and

(i) the Board approved the renewal of the letter of appointment
of Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long as Independent Non-executive
Director, for another term of one year commencing on 1
February 2019

Chief Executive Officer

With effect from 26 October 2018, Ms. YANG Shu-Hwa resigned as
Interim Chief Executive Officer of the Group and Ms. LIN Yen-Ling
was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Ms. LIN Yen-
Ling was also appointed as a director of some of the Company's

subsidiaries during the year and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

Other Major Appointments

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, was appointed as a director of Powerchip Semiconductor
Manufacturing Corp. in Taiwan on 4 September 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A5.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors and two
Executive Directors, namely Mr. YANG Shih-Chien (Chairman),
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, Mr. LU Chi-Chant, Dr. LEI Chien and
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan respectively.

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy aiming at
setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s
Board and having an appropriate proportion of Directors who
have direct experience in our key markets, with different ethnic
background, of both genders, reflecting our business strategy. All
appointment will be based on merit.

The Company has also adopted a Director Nomination Policy
aiming at setting out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of Directors of the Company and ensuring the Board
has a balance of skills, experiences and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company as well as the Board continuity and

appropriate leadership at Board level.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)
A5.  Nomination Committee (Continued)

A summary of the director nomination policy is set out below:

Criteria adopted for selection and recommendation for directorship

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the

following criteria should be considered:

Character and integrity.

Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy.

Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board.

Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.

Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company's business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for

nomination of directors and succession planning.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)
A5. Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination process

(@  Appointment of New Director

U]

(if)

(iiif)

(iv)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
rank them by order of preference based on the
needs of the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)
A5.  Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination process (Continued)

(b)

Re-election of Director at General Meeting

U]

(if)

(iii)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring
director continues to meet the criteria as set out
above.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of director at the
general meeting.

Where the board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect

a candidate as director at the general meeting, the relevant

information of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular

to shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying

the notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance

with the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, including but not

limited to, determining the policy for the nomination of Directors,

reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board

annually and making recommendations to the Board on selection

of candidates for directorships pursuant to the Board Diversity

Policy. It also assesses the independence of Independent Non-

executive Directors. Full terms of reference (Nomination Committee

Charter) are available on the Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.

com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A5.

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Company provided sufficient resources for the Nomination
Committee to perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination
Committee could seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expenses, to perform its duties.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2018. During the year 2018, the
Nomination Committee conducted an annual review of the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board pursuant
to the CG Guidelines and code provision A5.2 of the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee also assessed the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors and recommended to the
Board on the appointment of the Directors appointed during
the year. The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained and
no material matter was identified during the year. The Nomination
Committee also recommended to the Board on the revision of the
Board Diversity Policy and adoption of the Director Nomination
Policy.

Save as the above, the Nomination Committee has performed
corporate governance functions set out in code provision D.3.1
of the Code on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31
December 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Aé6.

Responsibilities of Directors

On appointment, new Directors will be given comprehensive
orientation training by the Company’s legal advisers, to explain the
responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.

During the year 2018, all Independent Non-executive Directors
are members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Some Non-executive Directors are
members of the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee.

The attendance records of individual Directors for all Board and

Board Committee meetings in 2018 are set out under “Directors’

Attendance and Training Records”on page 25 of this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Aé.

Responsibilities of Directors (Continued)

Securities Transactions made by Directors and Relevant Employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with all
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that the required standard
of the Model Code has been complied with throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this Annual Report.

The Company has adopted written guidelines (the “Company’s
Guidelines”), which are equally stringent as the Model Code, in
respect of securities transactions by relevant employees of the
Company who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company pursuant to code provision A6.4. No
incident of non-compliance with the Model Code or the Company’s
Guidelines by the Company’s relevant employees has been noted
after making reasonable enquiry.

Continuing Professional Development for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills in order to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Company organized one Directors' training on
the interpretation of Cyber Security Law of PRC.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
DIRECTORS (Continued)

A.

44

A6.

A7.

Responsibilities of Directors (Continued)

Continuing Professional Development for Directors (Continued)

There were compliance manuals provided to each of the Directors
and members of senior management, which set out (a) the principal
continuing obligations of the Company and the Directors as a result
of the listing of the securities of the Company on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange; and (b) the systems and procedures that the
Company, its Directors and senior management should follow in
order to ensure compliance with such obligations.

Supply of and access to information
The Company aims to continually improve on the quality and
timeliness of the dissemination of information to Directors.

Board papers were normally sent to all Directors at least three days
before the date of the Board/Board Committee meetings.

Senior management members are from time to time brought into
formal and informal contact with the Board at Board meetings and
other events.

Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by the
Directors and Board Committee members.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND BOARD EVALUATION

B1.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors and two
Executive Directors, namely Mr. LU Chi-Chant (Chairman), Mr. CHEN
Ruey-Long, Mr. YANG Shih-Chien, Dr. LEI Chien and Mr. PAN Yi-Fan
respectively.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include
determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of
Executive Directors, assessing performance of Executive Directors
and approving the terms of Executive Directors’ service contracts,
and determining or making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s remuneration packages of individual Executive and
Non-executive Directors and senior management.

In conducting its work in relation to the remuneration of Directors
and senior management, the Remuneration Committee ensures
that no director or any of his/her associates was involved in
determining his or her own remuneration. It also ensures that
remuneration levels should be sufficient to attract and retain

directors to run the Company successfully.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Full terms of reference (Remuneration
Committee Charter) are available on the Company’s website: www.
ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock Exchange’s

website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND BOARD EVALUATION (Continued)

B2.

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2018. During the year 2018, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and approved the proposed bonus
awards for all employees and senior management; reviewed and
recommended the Directors’ service contracts of Dr. LEI Chien and
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan as Executive Directors, and Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung,
Ms. LU Yu-Min and Ms. LIN Shu-Hua as Non-Executive Directors and
the letter of appointment of Mr. YANG Shih-Chien as Independent
Non-executive Director; reviewed and recommended the
amendment of the Director’s service contract of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu; and
reviewed and recommended the renewal of letter of appointment
of Mr. CHEN Ruey Long and Mr. LU Chi-Chant as Independent Non-
executive Directors. With reference to the Remuneration Committee
Charter, the Remuneration Committee members had carefully
reviewed and considered the contribution of each of the Directors
to the Group, the Directors’ experience in the beauty and spa
business and the market rate paid by comparable companies.

Independent professional advice would be sought to supplement
internal resources where appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C1.

Financial reporting

Management provided explanation and information to the Board to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.

Directors are provided with reports on the management’s strategic
plans, updates on lines of business, financial objectives, plans and
actions. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records and preparing accounts for each financial period, which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors have:

approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants;

selected and applied consistently appropriate accounting

policies;

made judgements and estimates that are prudent and

reasonable; and

prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

C1.

Financial reporting (Continued)

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report set out on pages 85
to 91.

Management provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company'’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient details
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts, and the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment to annual and interim reports, other announcements
in relation to inside information and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and report to regulators as well
as information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Cc2.

Risk management and internal control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing
and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and

internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority
for implementation by key business processes and office functions,
including project management, manufacturing and procurement,

financial reporting, human resources and information technology.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
have been developed with the following principles, features and
processes:

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed with the principles to enhance the operation
effectiveness, reduce loss in assets, ensure the reliability of financial
reports and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations.

The systems cover the factors including, among others,
environment control, risk assessment, activity control, information

and communication, and internal surveillance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Cc2.

Risk management and internal control (Continued)

The Company organizes personnel and seeks assistance from
external professional advisory institutions to establish the risk
management and internal control systems which are subject to the
review by the Company’s management team and approval by the
Audit Committee and the Board.

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to
identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and
various aspects including key operational and financial processes,
regulatory compliance and information security. Self-evaluation
has been conducted annually to confirm that control policies are
properly complied with by each department.

The management regularly reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and compliance
with best practices. In coordination with department heads, the
management assesses the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides
treatment plans, and monitors the risk management progress, and
reports to the Audit Committee on all findings and the effectiveness
of the systems. The Chief Audit Consultant also reports to the Audit

Committee on the implementation of internal control.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Internal Audit Department was established in early 2016
to enhance risk management and internal control systems in a
timely manner. The Internal Audit Department is responsible for
performing independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems. The Internal
Audit Department examines key issues in relation to the accounting
practices and all material controls and provides the effectiveness of
its implementation and recommendations for improvement to the
Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Cc2.

Risk management and internal control (Continued)

The Company has adopted a whistle-blowing policy to facilitate
its employees to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting control or other matters of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board conducted
reviews of the risk management and internal control systems and
considered that such systems of the Group had been implemented
effectively and adequately. The Board's review will also consider the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and Relevant Employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to

enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.

x
C.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors and one
Non-executive Director, namely Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman),
Mr. LU Chi-Chant, Mr. YANG Shih-Chien and Ms. LIN Shu-Hua,
respectively. The majority of the Audit Committee members
are Independent Non-executive Directors, with Mr. LU Chi-
Chant possessing the appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and related financial management expertise.

Draft minutes are sent to members of the Audit Committee within
14 days of each meeting. None of the Audit Committee members is
a partner of the external auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee is authorized by the Board to investigate
any activity within its terms of reference; to seek any information
it requires from any employee and all employees are directed to
cooperate with any request made by the Audit Committee; to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice; and
to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and
expertise to their meetings if necessary. Sufficient resources are

provided to the Audit Committee to discharge its duty.

Full terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) explaining
the Audit Committee’s role and authority are available on the
Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite

and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

.

4.

Audit Committee (Continued)
The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year ended
1 December 2018. During the year 2018, the Audit Committee
reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended 31
December 2017 and interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2018 and significant issues on the financial reporting and
compliance procedures and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties. During the year 2018,
the Audit Committee also met with the external auditors twice
to discuss audit issues, before recommending to the Board for
approval of publication of results.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to
take independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

There were no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee did not have any different view from the
Board regarding the selection and re-appointment of external

auditors.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which in
turn endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming AGM, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be
reappointed as the external auditors for year 2019.

There was a whistle-blowing policy which forms part of the
employee’s handbook.

Auditor’s remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Group's
auditors, in respect of audit services amounted to HK$3,611,000 and
non-audit services amounted to HK$245,000 which were reviewed
and approved by the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

D.

54

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

D1. Management functions
There is a defined schedule of matters reserved for full Board
decision, including:

- long-term objectives and strategies;

- extension of Group activities into new business areas;

- preliminary announcements of interim and annual results;

- material banking facilities;

- material acquisitions and disposals;

- material connected transactions; and

- annual internal controls assessment.

D2. Board Committees
The Board has established four Board Committees (namely Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Executive Committee
and Nomination Committee) that undertake work on its behalf
with specific terms of reference setting out their roles and
functions available at the Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/
hongkong/00157/irwebsite.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board
after each meeting, which address their work and findings.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee described above, details of the Executive
Committee are set out below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

D2.

Board Committees (Continued)

Executive Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Executive Committee
comprises two Executive Directors and three Non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson), Mr. PAN Yi-Fan, Ms. LU
Yu-Min, Ms. LIN Shu-Hua and Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang respectively.

Executive Committee is primarily responsible for formulating
business policies, making decisions on key business issues and
policies, facilitating the approval of certain corporate actions and
exercising the powers and authority delegated by the Board in
respect of matters arising between regularly scheduled Board
meetings, and to review financial, marketing, retail, operation and
other business performance, as well as to review and approve
annual budget and key performance indicators (“KPIs") and track

performance.

The Executive Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2018 and the attendance records are set out
under “Directors’ Attendance and Training Records” on page 25 of
this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

ET.

Effective communication

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

Chairperson of the Board and Chairmen of the Board Committees or
their respective delegates are requested to attend the forthcoming
AGM.

The Company has held one AGM on 24 May 2018 since the
issuance of the last annual report.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board
of a listed issuer should attend the AGM. The chairman of the
board should also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees to attend. In their absence,
the chairman of the board should invite another member of the
committee or failing this, his duly appointed delegate, to attend.
These persons should be available to answer questions at the AGM.

On the AGM held on 24 May 2018, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, the then
Chairperson of the Board, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, the Chairman
of the Audit Committee, Mr. LU Chi-Chant, the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, Mr. LEE Ming-Ta, the then Chairman
of the Executive Committee and Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang, the then
Chairman of the Nomination Committee were unable to attend the
AGM due to other overseas commitments. The Board had arranged
for Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, a then Executive Director and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and Executive Committee of
the Company, who was well versed in all business activities and
operations of the Group, to attend and chair the AGM on behalf of
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu and to respond to shareholders’ questions.

56 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2018

AATMEEEARER

E.

HERRZER
El. BXEE
REFEL  ARREUEFBEERB

YZEE (BEREREHNES) @

RlIR2RZER -

R ET IS EEL e g
582 BRARALFEERE
BEAR -

B E—HFEHAFEAR - ARAR
—F-\FRAZ A BRI
REFBFREG -

STRIMESCRRE T 21648 - L BT
AZEZEIEREFERRBEK
€ EFSTIRVUEHFIEREZE
2 FHZEE RHRZEERE
MEMEZEENERLF - 5B
ZRESIRARLE EFEER
EEFER—2RE (JWZEBEER
R E - BIHEAZENRR)
HE - ZFEATEERRBFAS
EEIELRER o

RZZE-N\FRAZ+MBERTH
BRBAFAE BEIESSERE
ERIEL  BRZBEIFEREN
Brt FMEZBERIREXREE
£ BERTZEEIRTHES
ERRERAZEEETRHFHER
EREMESINER L RBER A
FRRBFAE - B2 LHY
REBE — XA E) Mg BB AN
ENHFEZHEL (RAFRFERT
B FMREERMTRES
B)RRE[EFLHEREIRHR
RBFEREGREERRER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

ET.

Effective communication (Continued)

The Company has optimized the planning and procedures of
annual general meetings by, for example, giving adequate time
to all Directors to accommodate their work arrangements and
providing all necessary support for their presence and participation
at annual general meetings, such that the Chairperson of the
Board and all Directors will be able to attend future AGMs of the

Company.

The Company arranged for the notice to shareholders for the 2018
AGM at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

The procedure for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting can be found in Article 73 of the Articles of the Company,
which is available at the Company's website (www.ir-cloud.com/
hongkong/00157/irwebsite) and the Stock Exchange's website.

Documents relating to the Procedures for Nomination of Directors
by Shareholders and the Shareholder Communication Policy are
available for download from the Company’s website (www.ir-cloud.
com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite).

There is a dedicated section of “Shareholder Services” in the
Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite

to provide comprehensive information related to shareholders.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,

shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the following:

Address: 958 Changping Road, Jing'an District, Shanghai, China

Fax: +86 21 5256-0455
Email: ir@nblife.com
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
E1.  Effective communication (Continued)
For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by

law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
change to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the Company’s
Articles is also available on the Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.
com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock Exchange’s website.

E2. Voting by poll
Procedures for conducting a poll were set out in the notice of
the 2018 AGM. These procedures were also explained at the
commencement of the 2018 AGM.

A representative of the Company’s Share Registrar, Hong Kong
Registrars Limited, was appointed as scrutineer during the 2018
AGM.

Poll results were published on the same day following the 2018
AGM and posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and that of
the Company at www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

E2.

E3.

Voting by poll (Continued)

Investor relations

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for good investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group's business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency and
timely disclosure of corporate information.

Additional shareholders’ services can be found in the investor
relations section of the Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/
hongkong/00157/irwebsite.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy setting out the
principle and guidelines by the Company to apply declaration,
payment or distribution of its net profits as dividends to the
shareholders.

F. COMPANY SECRETARY
During the year 2018, Ms. HO Siu Pik of Tricor Services Limited, is an

external service provider and has been engaged by the Company as its

Company Secretary. Her main contact person at the Company is Ms. Jenny
ZHU (Chief Legal Counsel).

Ms. Ho has confirmed that she has undertaken no less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training during the year 2018.

On 20 March 2019, Ms. Ho resigned as the Company Secretary of the

Company and the Company has engaged Ms. SUN Ah Tsang of Tricor

Services Limited, an external service provider, as its Company Secretary.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

EER S REERER

CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. LEI CHIEN (ALIAS JOANNA LEI)

Aged 60, is the Chairperson of the Company. She was appointed as the
Company’s Executive Director on 26 October 2018. She is also the chairperson
of Executive Committee and a member of Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. She is currently also a director of some of the
Company’s subsidiaries. Dr. Lei is currently an executive director of Pacific
Construction Co, Limited* (R FEZAHDBR AR
Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE' 2506) and an independent director of Waterland
Financial Holding Co, Ltd*

, a company listed on
HZ 4 EHEAY A 7)), a company listed on Taiwan
Stock Exchange (TWSE: 2889). Dr. Lei is also serving on the board of a number
of non-profit organisations such as the Chinese Childrenhome and Shelter
Association* (2 & 4h 1% 5 Z BE 1 E) and the National Women's League*
(FERBIGUMER).

broadcasting sector and corporate management. Dr. Lei began her career as a

She has over 30 years of experience in the media and

media and development scholar at the University of Pennsylvania from 1984 to
1987. From 1987 to 1996, she worked in the media conglomerate Capital Cities/
ABC, Inc. in New York. She was eventually promoted to Vice President and was
one of the highest ranking Asians in mainstream American media. From 1997
to 2002, Dr. Lei was an investment partner of Baring Communication Equity
Asia in Singapore. Her investment activities included equity investment, debt
restructuring, and merger and acquisitions in telecom, media, and information
technology industries across the Asia Pacific region excluding Japan. In 2000,
Dr. Lei returned to Taiwan and from 2003 to 2004, she was an executive director
of Eastern Broadcasting Company Co, Ltd (“EBC"). She has been elected as
senator at the Legislative Yuan of the Republic of China in 2005 and until 2008.
Dr. Lei was appointed as the chairman of a government-owned enterprise,
Kinmen Kaoliang Liquor Co, Limited* (& PHEME 2N AR A F) in 2008
From 2009 to 2017, Dr. Lei has worked again in EBC as a board director. Dr. Lei
obtained a bachelor of arts degree in foreign languages and literature from the
National Taiwan University in June 1980. She has received a master of arts degree
in June 1983 and a doctor of philosophy in June 1996 from the University of
Pennsylvania (Philadelphia).
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. PAN YI-FAN (ALIAS IVAN PAN)

Aged 47, was appointed as the Company’s Executive Director on 26 October
2018. He is also a member of Executive Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is currently also a director
of some of the Company’s subsidiaries. Mr. Pan is currently the chief strategy
officer at Eastern Media Group and the general manager of Eastern Integrated
Marketing, Inc. He has more than 10 years of experience in private equity
investment and corporate management. Prior to joining Eastern Media Group
and Eastern Integrated Marketing, Inc. in February 2017, Mr. Pan worked as a
consultant at McKinsey & Co. from 1999 to 2005. He was then a vice president
at Crimson Investment from 2005 to 2007 and a director at Deutsche Bank from
2007 to 2010. He has worked as a director at the CID Group in Shanghai from
2010 to 2017. Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor of business administration degree
from National Taiwan University in June 1993 and he received a master of

business administration degree from the University of Michigan in April 1999.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

EEkEREEERE
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. HSIAO WEN-CHUNG

Aged 61, was appointed as the Company’s Non-executive Director on 26
October 2018. Mr. Hsiao joined the Company on 16 October 2006 as the chief
operating officer for the Group's Taiwan, Hong Kong and Malaysia markets. Mr.
Hsiao was subsequently re-designated as the chief operating officer of the
Group with effect from 15 April 2009 and was responsible for consolidating and
expanding the Group's operations until 9 February 2010. After 9 February 2010,
He was re-designated to take charge of the Group’s Taiwan market and he left
the Group on 30 July 2011. Mr. Hsiao subsequently re-joined the Group and was
appointed as chief operating officer and interim chief executive officer of the
Group with effect from 21 December 2015 and 1 January 2016, respectively. Mr.
Hsiao was re-designated as the chief executive officer of the Group and ceased
to be the chief operating officer, in each case, with effect from 1 September
2016. Mr. Hsiao resigned as the chief executive officer of the Group due to
personal reasons on 9 July 2018. For details of Mr. Hsiao's resignation, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 9 July 2018. Mr. Hsiao graduated
from the Department of Journalism of Chinese Culture University in 1981. Prior
to joining the Group in October 2006, Mr. Hsiao has over 23 years of operational
management experience in the consumer goods industry. He was the national
key account manager of Tait & Co,, the national sales director of Unilever Taiwan,
the greater china sales and marketing director of Warner-Lambert and Energizer
Schick Taiwan Limited, leading the sales team of the company operating
globally in the broad categories of household and personal care products. From
November 2014 to November 2015, Mr. Hsiao was the executive vice president
of Panion & BF Biotech Inc, Taiwan (stock code: 1760). Mr. Hsiao has re-joined the
Group as a Non-executive Director of the Company on the above-mentioned
appointment date. Mr. Hsiao was also a director of Shanghai Natural Beauty
Company Limited* (178 BAAE £ MR AR A7), Shanghai Natural Beauty
Fuli Cosmetics Co, Ltd* (B8 BAEERBRILEMABR A A) and Shanghai
Natural Beauty Bio-Med Company Limited* (/8 B AAZEMEEFR R 7).

62 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2018

FHITES :

B AL

615 ' RZE—N\F+TAZTNBEZERAR
DEPEWITES - MALENZZZERF+A+
NEMARRR - EAXEERE BERS
RIS EEEERE - MAEHEBRZ
EENFNA+HHEREAREE EFEE
BRE  BEZERBEASEER - HEH
ZEE-EF_AAR -RZT-ZF_RAN
Hig  BEEEBRATAELREE Z8ETS -
R -—E——FE+ A=+ HEMARER - BE
AHBEHAMARNER  UHREFT—R1F
TZAZ+—HARZT—R"F-A—HEEZ
TALER B EELERRFITHRESR -
BEERZT—"FNA—BEATALEE
ZITREE - BTBEAEREERE - R
Z-NFLANA @ BEEERRAREABEIAR
SEITHAHETY - BERLERTIFE
F2BARRBEHRAE T N\FLAABZA
HoBEER—NN\—FEERFEUELKRE
FEHR RZZZEFE+AMARERRA -
BAEENEEMITERBORFILEERL
5o BTt CoMERAR LR - 52
B & FZE 2 2B SHE BB - Warner-Lambert &
Energizer Schick Taiwan Limited) XA % [ 4
ERTISRE  EBERRZHEEEKTERIX
EEE P REZEIRERBEAAZRERZ
X% R TE—NF+—AEZT—HF+—
A B B YE(T A EPanion & BF Biotech Inc.
(R RFE - 1760) ZFATRIABEL - BBAER
THRZEFREBRINALER - BARQTRIFER
TEF BAENBIT LEEAEZEDRIEE
RAR - EEAREEEBtMARBRATRE
HEAREENBEBRNGIES -



Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MS. LU YU-MIN (ALIAS VICKY LU)

Aged 54, was appointed as the Company’s Non-executive Director on 16
November 2018. She is also a member of Executive Committee of the Company.
Ms. Lu is the consultant for cosmetic business of Far Eastern Silo & Shipping
(Panama) S.A. since October 2018. Ms. Lu has over 25 years of experience in
the luxury retail and cosmetics industry with a solid understanding of Chinese
consumers and the Chinese markets. Ms. Lu previously worked for The Estee
Launder Companies for over 14 years, managing brands including Estee Lauder,
Clinique, MAC Cosmetics, Bobbi Brown, Origins, La Mer, Darphin and Aramis as
managing director of the beauty product group’s Taiwan Affiliate from 1999 to
2011. Ms. Lu then became the vice president and general manager of Bobbie
Brown International, overseeing five global regions based out of its New York
headquarter. Ms. Lu also has experience in management of buying, operations,
logistics, sales and marketing for global brands such as Celine, Salvatore
Ferragamo and COACH when she worked for DFS from 1989 to 1990, and Bally
Hong Kong from 1991 to 1992. From 2014 to 2016, Ms. Lu has also provided
end-to-end e-commerce business services to Shanghai Baozun E-Commerce
Limited* (L8 B BE FREA R A 7). Ms. Lu obtained a bachelor’s degree in
journalism from National Chengchi University in June 1986.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MS. LIN SHU HUA

Aged 56, was appointed as the Company’s Non-executive Director on 16
November 2018. She is also a member of both Executive Committee and Audit
Committee of the Company. Ms. Lin was the vice president of the finance
department of Eastern Home Shopping & Leisure Co, Ltd* (R #7155 B A%
3 7BBRAR]) between January 2005 and September 2008. In April 2016, Ms.
Lin re-joined the same company, holding the same position since then. After
obtaining her qualification as a Certified Public Account of the Republic of China
in August 1996, Ms. Lin has since then worked at the finance department of
various companies, including Eastern Broadcasting Co, Ltd* (RFREAR FH 2
B& D BBRAT), Fastern Multimedia Co, Ltd* (BRI IRH AR A R)
and Sensen Home Shopping Co, Ltd.* (Fr#k B B &9 AR A ), accumulating
over 20 years of experience in total. Ms. Lin graduated from the Department
of Accounting at National Chung Hsing University in 1987 and obtained an
executive master degree of business administration from the National Taiwan
University in 2016.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. CHAN SHOU-HUANG

Aged 66, was appointed as the Company’s Non-executive Director on 25
January 2019. He is also a member of the Executive Committee of the Company.
He obtained a master degree in law from the Chinese Culture University and
subsequently obtained a doctoral degree in law from the National Taiwan Ocean
University. He is currently a part-time professor in the Institute of Marine Law of
the National Taiwan Ocean University. Mr. Chen used to serve as parliamentary
vice minister of Taiwan Ministry of Justice, the prosecutor of the Supreme Court
Prosecutor’s Office, the Chief Prosecutor of the High Court of Taiwan and the
Head Prosecutor of various districts in Taiwan. During the period when he served
as the Chief Prosecutor of the High Court, he was appointed as the president of
Taiwan After-Care Association and the Association for Victims Support.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. TSAI YEN-YU (ALIAS TSAI YEN-PIN)

Aged 71, founder and Honorary Chairperson of the Company. She was a director
of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) COMPANY LIMITED from
16 May 2001 to 3 December 2018. She was a director of some of our British
Virgin Islands, Malaysia, PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries. Dr. Tsai has been awarded

numerous honours, positions and prizes such as:

Honorary Doctor of Commerce, Dewey University, the US.A.
Fellowship of Asian Knowledge Management Association
Female Entrepreneur Award by Ernst & Young “Entrepreneur of the Year”

Taiwan's Top Ten Most Influential Female Entrepreneur awarded by
CommonWealth Magazine

Outstanding Entrepreneurs of Taiwan awarded by Taiwan Women's
Business Association

“Top 100 Chinese Entrepreneurs” of China

“Bai Yu Lan" Award by the Shanghai City Government

Principal consultant in the Chinese Ministry of Labor and the programme
“Ji Qing Chuang Ye"of CCTV

Principal consultant of cosmetology arbitration panel in the Chinese
Ministry of Law

1st Pacemaker Award and Education Award of Beauty and Cosmetics
Industry in China

Dr. Tsai was an Executive Director and the Chairperson of the Board until she
was re-designated as a Non-executive Director and stepped down from being
the Chairperson of the Board on 26 October 2019. She was also a member
of the Nomination Committee until 16 November 2018. She resigned as a
Non-executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee on 25
January 2019.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. CHEN RUEY-LONG (ALIAS STEVE CHEN)

Aged 70, was appointed as the Company’s Independent Non-executive Director
on 1 February 2010. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. He obtained his Bachelor degree of Economics from National
Chung-Hsing University in 1970. He was the Minister of the Ministry of Economic
Affairs of Taiwan from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that, he held various positions and
represented the Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan in various countries
and was based in Switzerland from 1987 to 1996 and in Belgium from 1974 to
1979. Mr. Chen was the Board Chairman of the Institute for Information Industry
in Taiwan from 2008 to 2009. Mr. Chen is currently the Board Chairman of
SINOCON Industrial Standards Foundation in Taiwan, the Secretary-general of
Cross-Strait CEO Summit, a director of Bank of Panhsin in Taiwan, Teknowledge
Development Corporation in Taiwan and Powerchip Semiconductor
Manufacturing Crop. in Taiwan, and the Board Chairman and Chief Operating
Officer of Powerchip Technology Corporation (stock code: 5346), listed on
the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He is also a director of HannStar Board
Corporation (stock code: 5469) and Asia Cement Corporation (stock code: 1102);
a managing director and independent director of Formosa Chemicals and Fibre
Corporation (stock code: 1326); an independent director of China Petrochemical
Development Corporation, Ltd. (stock code: 1314), INVENTEC CORPORATION
(stock code: 2356), and Walsin Lihwa Corporation (stock code: 1605), which are
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. From June 2011 until 10 June 2014, he was
an independent director of E-Ton Solar Tech. Co, Ltd. (stock code: 3452), listed on
the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He was also a director of GINTECH ENERGY
CORPORATION (stock code: 3514), listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, until 30
October 2017.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. LU CHI-CHANT

Aged 67, was appointed as the Company’s Independent Non-executive Director
on 18 December 2015. He is also the Chairman of Remuneration Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He is currently an independent non-executive director of Eagle
Nice (International) Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 02368), and an independent director of
LEALEA ENTERPRISE CO,, LTD (stock code: 1444) and Hannstar Board Corp. (stock
code: 5469), all listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. He is also an independent
director of Nyquest Technology Co,, Ltd, a company listed on the Taiwan GreTai
Securities Market (stock code: 6494). From June 2015 to June 2018, Mr. Lu was
an independent director of Li Peng Enterprise Co, Ltd. (stock code: 1447), a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. From June 2014 to May 2017,
Mr. Lu was an independent director of K Laser Technology Inc. (stock code:
2461), a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. From 2012 to 2013, Mr.
Lu was an independent director of First Sino Bank, a licensed bank established
in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Lu obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Mechanical Engineering from National Taiwan University in 1974 and passed the
professional qualification examinations in Taiwan for certified public accountant
in 1983 and for securities investment analyst in 1988. During the period from
1976 to 1984, Mr. Lu worked as a mechanical engineer in Formosa Plastics
Corporation, a company established in Taiwan which is principally engaged in
the manufacturing of plastic raw materials and products. Mr. Lu joined Deloitte &
Touche Taiwan as an auditor in 1984 and he became a partner there in 1986. Mr.
Lu left Deloitte & Touche Taiwan in 2011.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. YANG SHIH-CHIEN

Aged 74, was appointed as the Company’s Independent Non-executive Director
on 16 November 2018. He is also a member of Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee. He is currently the chairman and
chief executive officer of Global Strategic Investment Fund, a board director of
Tecom Co,, Ltd. (TWSE. 2321), Yageo Corporation (TWSE. 2327), TECO Electric
& Machinery Co., Ltd. (TWSE. 1504) and Mitac Inc. (TWSE. 3706), and an
independent director of TOPKEY Corporation (TWSE. 4536) and WUS Printed
Circuit Co, Ltd (TWSE. 2316). Mr. Yang was a national policy advisor to the
President of the Republic of China between January 2009 and May 2016. Prior
to that, Mr. Yang already worked in the government of the Republic of China
for more than 38 years, such as the director of the Planning and Evaluation
Division of the National Science Council, Senior Vice Minister of the Ministry
of Economic Affairs and Minister of State. Mr. Yang also worked as a research
engineer at the Chung Shan Institute of Science & Technology between
November 1973 and January 1978. Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor’s degree in
electrical engineering from the National Taiwan University in June 1967. Mr. Yang
subsequently obtained a master and a doctor degree in electrical engineering
from Northwestern University in June 1971 and August 1973 respectively.

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER:

MS. LIN YEN-LING

Aged 55, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 26
October 2018. She is currently also a director of some of the Company’s
subsidiaries. She graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree from National
Chengchi University in Taiwan. Ms. Lin has been working in Eastern Group since
May 2018 as Chief Marketing & Sales Officer of Eastern Media International
Corp,, Chief Marketing Officer of Eastern Home Shopping & Leisure Co,, Ltd,, and
Chief Sales Officer of ETtoday Co,, Ltd. Prior to this appointment, Ms. Lin was the
general manager of Lintas China Group from 2016 to 2017. From 1997 to 2016,
Ms. Lin had worked at Eastern Broadcasting Co,, Ltd. as Chief Operation and Sales
Officer and Havas Worldwide as Executive Vice President of Greater China and
Chief Executive Officer of Taiwan.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

COMPANY SECRETARY:

MS. SUN AH TSANG

Ms. Sun, is a Manager of Corporate Services of Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”),
a global professional services provider specializing in integrated Business,
Corporate and Investor Services. Ms. Sun has over 10 years of experience in the
corporate secretarial field. She has been providing professional corporate services
to Hong Kong listed companies as well as multinational, private and offshore
companies. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Ms. Sun is the company secretary
of the Company and China Greenland Broad Greenstate Group Company
Limited (stock code: 1253). Ms. Sun is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered
Governance Professional and an Associate of both The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS") and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom. (Note: The Company has engaged Tricor
as external service provider and appointed Ms. Sun as the Company’s company
secretary since 20 March 2019.)

MS. HO SIU PIK

Ms. Ho, is an Executive Director of Corporate Services of Tricor Tricor, a global
professional services provider specializing in integrated Business, Corporate
and Investor Services. Ms. Ho has over 20 years of experience in the corporate
secretarial field. She has been providing professional corporate services to Hong
Kong listed companies as well as multinational, private and offshore companies.
As at the Latest Practicable Date, Ms. Ho is the company secretary/joint company
secretary of five listed companies on the Stock Exchange, including Asia Cement
(China) Holdings Corporation (stock code: 743), China Molybdenum Co,, Ltd.
(stock code: 3993), Goodbaby International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1086),
Grand Talents Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8516) and Summit Ascent
Holdings Limited (stock code: 102). Ms. Ho is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered
Governance Professional and a Fellow of both HKICS and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. She is a holder
of the Practitioner’s Endorsement from HKICS. (Note: The Company has engaged
Tricor as external service provider and appointed Ms. Ho as the Company’s
company secretary from 11 December 2013 to 20 March 2019.)

*  Foridentification purpose only.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRSE

The Directors have pleasure to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in (a) manufacturing and sales of a range of products including skin
care, beauty, aroma-therapeutic products, health supplements and make-
up products under the “Natural Beauty” brand and beauty apparatus and (b)
provision of skin treatments, beauty and spa services, medical cosmetology
services, skin care consulting and beauty training. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018
(including an analysis of the Group's performance during the year using
key performance indicators and a discussion of the Group's future business
development) is set out in the Chairman’s Statement in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Company for the year 2018.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board of Directors and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, there was no material breach of, or non-compliance,

with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationship with Employees

Competitive remuneration packages are maintained to attract, retain and
motivate capable staff members and are reviewed on a regular basis. The Group
maintains good relations with its employees and is committed to their training
and development. Professional training courses are offered to beauticians
employed by the Group and to franchisees on a regular basis.

Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and other Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good relationships with
its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no material and significant
disputes between the Group and its suppliers, customers and other stakeholders.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment and
communities in which it operates. Acting in an environmentally responsible
manner, the Group endeavors to comply with the applicable environmental laws
and regulations and to adopt effective measures to ensure the efficient usage of
resources, energy conservation and waste reduction. Such initiatives include the
recycling of used papers, the adoption of energy saving measures. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had not been subject to any fines or
other penalties due to any non-compliance with health, safety or environmental
regulations.

For details of the Company’s environment policy and performance, please refer
to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company for the
year 2018.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 92.

An interim dividend of HK$0.0145 per share (2017: interim dividend of HK$0.0171
and special interim dividend of HK$0.0054), amounting to approximately
HK$29,031,000, were paid to the shareholders during the year. At the Board
meeting held on 20 March 2019, the Directors did not recommend the payment
of any final dividend (2017: final dividend of HK$0.0335). Details of the dividends
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed on the following dates:

TENERRECTE
AR T AL EH R R B D FE -

Book Closure Period Purpose
F iR AR R 5L HAR B #)

Final Lodging Date
RI&ER B

Friday, 17 May 2019 to
Thursday, 23 May 2019
“E-NFRA+TER (BHPR) E
ZE-NFRAZ+=H (2HN) Re EREZBRRHH
During and including the book closure period described in the table above, no
transfer of shares will be effected.

In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2019 AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on the final
lodging date mentioned in the table above.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, about 12.1% of the Group’s revenue from sales of goods
or rendering of services was attributable to the Group'’s 5 largest customers
combined.

During the year, about 37.5% of the Group's total purchases (beauty apparatus)
was attributable to the Group's largest supplier, and about 48.8% of the Group’s
total purchases was attributable to the Group’s 5 largest suppliers combined. To
the best knowledge of the Directors after making all reasonable enquiries, no
Director, close associate of each Director, or any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the number
of issued shares of the Company) has any interest in the suppliers mentioned
above.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2018 were fair valued by
an independent firm of professional property valuers. There was no change in
fair value of investment properties other than the exchange realignment.

Details of movements during the year in the investment properties of the Group
are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results for the year and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 and for the previous four financial years are set
out on page 212 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the publishing date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. LEI Chien (appointed on 26 October 2018)

Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (alias Ivan PAN) (@appointed on 26 October 2018)

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (alias LEE Ming-Tah) (resigned on 16 November 2018)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (resigned on 16 November 2018)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung (appointed on 26 October 2018)

Ms. LU Yu-Min (alias Vicky LU) (appointed on 16 November 2018)

Ms. LIN Shu-Hua (appointed on 16 November 2018)

Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang (appointed on 25 January 2019)

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (alias Spring Sh-Hsyu SU) (resigned on 16 November 2018)

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu (alias TSAI Yen-Pin) (redesignated from Executive Director to
Non-executive Director on 26 October 2018 and resigned on 25 January 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (alias Steve CHEN)

Mr. LU Chi-Chant

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien (appointed on 16 November 2018)

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (alias SHIA Ben-Chang) (resigned on 16 November 2018)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s Articles, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. Pursuant to this article, Dr. LEI Chien, Mr. PAN Yi-Fan, Mr.
HSIAO Wen-Chung, Ms. LU Yu-Min, Mr. LIN Shu-Hua, Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang and
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien, the Directors appointed by the Board after the holding
of the last annual general meeting on 24 May 2018, will hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Company’s Articles, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then a number not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
at each annual general meeting. Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long shall retire by rotation
pursuant this article.

All the above-mentioned Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. The Company
considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Directors are required to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in any
proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at Board meetings and
withdraw if appropriate.

CHAIRPERSON, VICE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD
COMMITTEES

The Chairperson and Vice Chairman of the Board and the members of each
of the committees of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Honorary Chairperson

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu (appointed as the Honorary Chairperson on 26 October 2018)
Chairperson and Vice Chairman

Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson of the Board) (appointed on 26 October 2018)

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu (Chairperson of the Board) (ceased to act as the

Chairperson on 26 October 2018)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman of the Board) (resigned on 16 November 2018)
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CHAIRPERSON, VICE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD
COMMITTEES (Continued)

Members of Audit Committee:

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman)

Mr. LU Chi-Chant

Ms. LIN Shu-Hua (appointed on 16 November 2018)

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien (appointed on 16 November 2018)

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (resigned on 16 November 2018)

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (resigned on 16 November 2018)

Members of Remuneration Committee:

Mr. LU Chi-Chant (Chairman)

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Dr. LEI Chien (appointed on 16 November 2018)

Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (appointed on 16 November 2018)

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien (appointed on 16 November 2018)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (resigned on 16 November 2018)
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (resigned on 16 November 2018)

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (resigned on 16 November 2018)

Members of Executive Committee:
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson) (appointed on 16 November 2018)

Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (appointed on 16 November 2018)

Ms. LU Yu-Min (appointed on 16 November 2018)

Ms. LIN Shu-Hua (appointed on 16 November 2018)
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang (appointed on 25 January 2019)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (resigned on 16 November 2018)

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (resigned on 16 November 2018)
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (resigned on 16 November 2018)

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu (resigned on 25 January 2019)

Members of Nomination Committee:
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien (Chairman) (appointed on 16 November 2018)

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. LU Chi-Chant

Dr. LEI Chien (appointed on 16 November 2018)

Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (appointed on 16 November 2018)

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (resigned on 16 November 2018)

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu (ceased to be a member on 16 November 2018)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (resigned on 16 November 2018)
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CHAIRPERSON, VICE CHAIRMAN AND BOARD
COMMITTEES (Continued)

The compositions of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company as well
as the Chairperson of the Company as of date of this report are set out below:

IFE -EEEREFESEES )

TREINBEEARESTNERS - ARAIEXK
ZBEg FMEZEE® WTRZEERERZEER
G ZHEMABARAKRRERE

Board Committees

EE by
Audit Remuneration Executive Nomination
Committee Committee Committee Committee
Board of Directors EEgNE BRLEEg HFWEEEe WNZEg RELET
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson of the Board) EEHL (E52xR) - M C M
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan BB LA - M M M
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung EQT S - - - -
Ms. LU Yu-Min EmRzt - - M -
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua WRERZ + M - M -
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang BT E - - M -
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long BRI A4 C - M
Mr. LU Chi-Chant EEELE M C - M
Mr.YANG Shih-Chien et 4 M - C
Notes: PR -
C Chairman/Chairperson of the relevant Board committees C AREFEEZ %@E’JIFE
M Member of the relevant Board committees M AHREFEZREMKE
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the
Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders were nil.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors has entered into a
Director’s service contract with the Company for an initial term of one year from
16 November 2018, except Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang, whose initial term is for one
year from 25 January 2019, which shall be terminated by either party giving to
the other party at least three months’ notice in writing.

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien, an Independent Non-executive Director, has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of one year from 16
November 2018.

The letter of appointment entered into between the Company and Mr. LU Chi-
Chant, an Independent Non-executive Director, was expired on 17 December
2018 and was renewed with the same terms for another one year from 18
December 2018.

The letter of appointment entered into between the Company and Mr. CHEN
Ruey-Long, an Independent Non-executive Director, was expired on 31 January
2019 and was renewed with the same terms for another one year from 1
February 2019.

The above-mentioned letters of appointments shall be terminated by either

party giving to the other party at least one month's notice in writing.

The Director’s service contract entered into between the Company and Dr. TSAI
Yen-Yu, who was re-designated from an Executive Director to Non-executive
Director on 26 October 2018, was valid from 26 October 2018 to 31 December
2020, which was terminated on 25 January 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

The Directors’ service contracts entered into between the Company and Mr. LEE
Ming-Ta, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Executive Directors) and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (Non-
executive Director) were terminated on 16 November 2018.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has any unexpired service contract or letter
of appointment which is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and/or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year 2018.

Remuneration of Directors, Chief Executives and Senior
Management

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and chief executives on a named
basis and the senior management by band, are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles, every Director shall be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in the execution of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated
with defending any proceedings which may be brought against Directors of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, so far as known to any Directors, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company or any of their close associates had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to
be recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 347 of the SFO and the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 13 May 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme whereby the
Board of Directors can grant options for the subscription of the Company’s
shares to any full-time employee of the Group, the chief executive, executive or
non-executive director of the Group at the time when a share option is granted
to such person as determined by the Board at as a performance incentive and/
or reward for their continued and improved service with the Group and by
enhancing eligible participants' contribution to the Group, in order to advance
the interests of the Company and its shareholders and such other persons.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no share option was granted under
the share option scheme.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2018
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, within the knowledge of the Directors, the following
persons or corporations had or deemed or taken to have an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

RAEXTRGRABRG 2R

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

RAFEREEI0BITZEER

Number of

ordinary shares
beneficially held

Approximate
percentage

of the issued
share capital

of the Company

Name of substantial shareholder Nature of interest BEnFE HARRRIB#T
TEREESR L EmtE TEREE eNFOE RN
Eastern Media International Interest of controlled companies 600,630,280(L) 30.00%
Corporation ("EMIC")
RARBIR AR B R A A ZAESIA Al
(MERAREIRR 1)
Far Eastern Silo & Shipping Beneficial owner 600,630,280(L) 30.00%
(Panama) S.A.
RRAME (BE25) ERHEAA
I B R A A]
CHAO Shih-Heng Interest of controlled companies 455,630,196(L) 22.76%
= TSR Al
Good Titanic Limited Interest of controlled companies 455,630,196(L) 22.76%
ISR Al
Insbro Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 455,630,196(L) 22.76%
REIERBRAT] BEmaA
TSAl Yen-Yu Interest of controlled companies 445,315,083(L) 22.24%
BAEE ZIEHIA Al
LEE Ming-Ta Interest of spouse 445,315,083(L) 22.24%
THE Ao B
Next Focus Holdings Limited Beneficial owner/Interest of 445,315,083(L) 22.24%
controlled companies
gy T PN et NS £
Starsign International Limited Interest of controlled companies 292,958,524(L) 14.63%
ER VNG
Standard Cosmos Limited Beneficial Owner/Interest of 292,958,524(L) 14.63%

controlled companies
gy TS PN et NS £

L) : Long position
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

M

Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of EMIC. As
such, the shares of the Company in which Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A.
is interested were attributable to EMIC.

Insbro Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Good Titanic Limited, which is in turn
owned as to 100% by Mr. CHAO Shih-Heng. Mr. CHAO Shih-Heng is the sole director
of each of Insbro Holdings Limited and Good Titanic Limited. As such, the shares of
the Company in which Insbro Holdings Limited is interested were attributable to
Good Titanic Limited and Mr. CHAO Shih-Heng.

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu directly owns 40% of Next Focus Holdings Limited. Next Focus
Holdings Limited is therefore a controlled corporation of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu and interest
of 445,315,083 shares of the Company owned by Next Focus Holdings Limited was
attributable to Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu.

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta is the spouse of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu and accordingly, is deemed to be
interested in the 445,315,083 shares of the Company attributable to Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu
pursuant to the SFO.

Next Focus Holdings Limited directly holds 152,356,559 shares of the Company
and directly owns 100% of Starsign International Limited. Starsign International
Limited is the sole shareholder of Standard Cosmos Limited, which, in turn, is the
sole shareholder of Efficient Market Investments Limited, Adventa Group Limited
and Fortune Bright Group Limited. As such, the 290,618,524 shares of the Company
collectively held by Efficient Market Investments Limited, Adventa Group Limited
and Fortune Bright Group Limited and 2,340,000 shares of the Company held
directly by Standard Cosmos Limited (totalling 292,958,524 shares of the Company)
were attributable to Standard Cosmos Limited and Starsign International Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors are not aware of

any other person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)

who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of

the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Group had the following significant transactions with connected persons:

On 16 November 2018, (a) a tenancy agreement was entered into between H A
EEYRRBRMH BB AR (Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Company Limited)
(“Taiwan NB"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as tenant
and Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, as landlord in relation to the lease of certain premises in
Taipei, Taiwan which has been used as the headquarters and training and spa
centre of the Group in Taipei, Taiwan, for a period of one year from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2019, with monthly rental of TW$2,250,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$571,066) to extend the term of the previous tenancy
agreement of the same subject matter (the “Taipei Tenancy Agreement”); and
(b) another tenancy agreement was entered into between Taiwan NB as tenant
and Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, as landlord in relation to the lease of certain premises
in Pa-Der Road, Taipei, Taiwan which has been used as a spa centre of the Group,
in Taipei, Taiwan, for a period of one year from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019 with a monthly rental of TW$78,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKS$19,797) to extend the term of the previous tenancy agreement of the same
subject matter.

As Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, the landlord of the Renewed Taipei Tenancy Agreement, was
a Non-executive Director of the Company when entering into Taipei Tenancy
Agreement and is a substantial shareholder of the Company as at the date of
this Annual Report, and Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, the landlord of the Renewed Pa-
Der Tenancy Agreement, was an Executive Director of the Company in the last
12 months, both Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu and Dr. SU Chien-Cheng are connected persons
of the Company and the transactions contemplated under these tenancy
agreements constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules.

Details of the above-mentioned tenancy agreements were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 29 October 2014, 8 December 2016
and 16 November 2018. Unless otherwise stated, for illustration purpose, the
exchange rate used in the above tenancy agreements is HK$1.00 to TW$3.94.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

The above transactions are regarded as continuing connected transactions of
the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Particulars of the
transactions are disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business,
on terms no less favourable than terms available from independent third parties
and were negotiated and conducted by the Group on an arm’s length basis
and on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and are in
the interests of the Group and its shareholders as a whole.

The board of Directors confirmed that the Group’s auditors have confirmed the

matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
Save as disclosed above:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2018 or at any time during such year; and

(i) there were no transactions which need to be disclosed as connected

transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is adopted by the Board
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and chief executives of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
as authorized by shareholders at the annual general meeting, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles, or
the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu which
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

LEIl Chien
Chairperson
Hong Kong

20 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Natural Beauty
Bio-Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “the Group”) set out on pages 92 to 211, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRENEHE EETHHBARETSENEES E
Valuation of allowance for inventories

FEEEAE

We identified the valuation of allowance for inventories as a
key audit matter due to the significant management estimate
involved in the net realisable value and the significance of
valuation of allowance for inventories in the context of the
consolidated financial statements.

R FERBHEZTERFESREXNEEEMRT - A
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As disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group’s inventories mainly include raw materials and
finished goods. As at 31 December 2018, the allowance for
obsolete inventories of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$15,985,000.

BUER A SRR T20THE EEEFEEERIER
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As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the management of the Group reviews inventories on a
product-by-product basis at the end of each reporting period,
and makes allowance for obsolete inventories or slow-moving
inventories that are no longer suitable for use in production or
trading. The management estimates the net realisable value for
such items with reference to the recent selling prices, subsequent
sales and the market conditions.
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Our procedures in relation to valuation of allowance for
inventories included:

LSt ERERENETRF 2

Obtaining an understanding of the management controls
over the identification of obsolete inventories and the
assessment of their net realisable value;

AR E IR LRI R EF B MG R A 23R E 2 2
A

Evaluating the reasonableness of the methods and
estimation used in net realisable value of inventories;

AHERFEATERHEME RN DERMGEZ AR

Involving our internal IT specialist in testing the inventory
aging reports generated by the application system and
checking to the supporting documents for its accuracy, on a
sample basis; and

ZAERMNABEANRBER AR RRAELNT
EEEHE - WH LR B ER X
IS4

Performing physical observation of the Group's physical
inventory, inspecting the Group’s facilities to identify
any deficiency of the count process and observing the
inventories position to identify any indicator of impairment.
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R ARSI B RLBIE P AT RE B AT RO SRR - B
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HRETEE EESTPHARETSENEESE
Revenue recognition on product sales
Eip 1 B BRTESRAA

We identified the revenue recognition on product sales as a key
audit matter due to it is one of the Group’s key performance
indicators and the significance of revenue in the context of the
consolidated financial statements.

HREmEERERRARTEEEEREERE 2 — A
ASERAEMBREINOERN - AR MBZEERRRE
BRERTSFH

Product sales are the Group's key revenue source and primarily
come from franchised spas, self-owned spas and concessionary
counters at department stores, while terms of trade would vary.
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As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group recognised total revenue amounted to approximately
HK$369,525,000 in 2018, in which product sales amounted to
approximately HK$348,728,000, or 94.4% of the Group's total

revenue.
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Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition on product
sales included:

ﬁﬁﬁ%“ﬂlﬁl?\ﬁ@ u«um%u‘l»%ir F'_f}é

Obtaining the sales contracts, on a sample basis, and
reviewing the key terms of trade to assess if the revenue
recognition policy is in compliance with the relevant
accounting standard;

DT ARG HEANLERNERE H G - JARHE
WAERFERENAEEEHRE

Checking to inventories and sales records subsequent to
the year end for any significant sales return occurred after
balance sheet date; and

BERNEREOFERHE pﬂﬁ’?  NHERBERBERA
PERRDRETMBERNHERE + &

Checking to the supporting documents, on a sample basis,
before and after the balance sheet date to ensure that
revenue was properly recognised in the appropriate period.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably

be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Jacky Wong Suk Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit itor Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mABEN

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\F+ZA=+—HLFE

Hit 2w m R

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —t5F
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000
FfaE FEx FAT
Revenue WA 5 369,525 399,579
Cost of sales SHEKA (146,665) (94,467)
Gross profit ES 222,860 305,112
Other income and other gains H AU FF1S 7 8,077 12,879
Impairment losses, net of reversal REREE (HIBREE) 8 2,267 (3457)
Distribution and selling expenses DIE R EE R (120,200) (100,946)
Administrative expenses G (69,982) (61,457)
Other expenses and other losses Habz Ak (3,865) (5,393)
Profit before tax BR A% Bl A 39,157 146,738
Income tax expense FriSEi sz 9 (12,898) (41,350)
Profit for the year NFE s A 10 26,259 105,388
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Hih2mE (k) Wz :
Item that will not be reclassified to TEHRET TR B m &
profit or loss: ZIHEEA -
Remeasurement of defined benefit ERREANRNEFTEZ
pension plans EHErE 27 3,372 (1,126)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to HIET e BT IR
profit or loss: Bm&k s HE -
Exchange differences arising on translation MEGINETSEE 2
of foreign operations e ZRE (32,421) 52,379
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year AEEHME2ME (FX)
Was (29,049) 51,253
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year AFEE2E (AX)
W e 5E (2,790) 156,641
Profit for the year attributable to: ATALTEEREZE R :
Owners of the Company AN/NCIE P SN 26,259 105,388
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year UTATERERFEFEEZE
attributable to: (FX) WammBss :
Owners of the Company KAFHEAA (2,790) 156,641
Earnings per share BRAF 13
Basic HAK HK1.3 cents HK5.3 cents
1.3l 53741l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R E BRI ]R3k

At 31 December 2018
RZE—-NF+=—_A=+—H

31/12/2018 31/12/2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
+=ZHA=+—-H +ZA=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Fd7E FET FAT
Non-current assets FEREBERE
Investment properties Tﬁﬁ%% 15 7,674 7,893
Property, plant and equipment ME - MR NMEE 16 197,207 198,610
Prepaid lease payments =)z iﬁﬂfrﬂfqy\ 18 48,530 52,431
Goodwill 19 31,407 27,095
Intangible assets ﬁﬂb’ 17 17,122 =
Deposits for purchase of property, BE ﬁ@% NG P
plant and equipment \ 20,528 -
Deferred tax assets ELETIAE 30 5,234 =
Pledged bank deposits R TTER 23 3,479 =
331,181 286,029
Current assets muﬂlﬁE
Inventories 78 20 74,313 85,077
Trade and other receivables B 5 N EH A EURBR TR 21 86,567 109,289
Contract costs B KIS 22 798 -
Amounts due from related parties FEU ZAE 75 5RIR 34(b) 420 =
Prepaid lease payments AT ER 18 1,184 1,249
Pledged bank deposits HEARRI TR 23 3,479 7,338
Bank balances and cash RTHEFRERS 23 181,024 288,903
347,785 491,856
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade and other payables %%&E{ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%m 24 93,501 91,282
Contract liabilities & %’]%1&: 25 22,616 -
Deferred income RS 26 - 5,981
Tax payable JER A 9,695 18,389
125,812 115,652
Net current assets REEERE 221,973 376,204
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 553,154 662,233
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 30 - 5,863
Retirement benefit obligations BRENET 27 1,299 5624
Net assets EERE 551,855 650,746
Capital and reserves R &S
Share capital N 28 200,210 200,210
Reserves EAe 351,645 450,536
Total equity R 551,855 650,746
The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 211 were approved and FNEEF2NBMGRAUBRERNR_E—NF=FA
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2019 and are signed on its —+A E%%ﬁ}ﬁ/ﬁlfﬁé FlzE jﬁEE AT REE
behalf by: L
Dr. LEI Chien Mr. PAN Yi-Fan
EFEL BRNEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EZE EZE
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\'-"r-,. e e = e
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
=N 7 é\_
nVT\ *E m %7 EjJ ’I%
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\F+ZA=+—HLFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
RRFHE AEE
Remeasurement
Share of defined
Share  Capital Share  Statutory Translation ~ options benefitpension  Retained
Capital  surplus  premium reserve reserve reserve plans  earnings Total
TEENEKE
hx BxRR ROEE EERE ERRE IRERE SHZENHE  RERN &t
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0O  HKS'000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
TEr TEr  TEr  TERT TR TER TEr TEr  TEn
Balance at RZZ—t5-A-B&g
1 January 2017 200210 42 554 41,016 163490 45,769 11,109 (120) 150,645 654,673
Profitfor the year RERRT] - - - - - - - 10538 105388
Other comprehensive  AFEEM 2Nz
income (expense) (F%)
for the year - - - - 52379 - (1,126) - 51253
Total comprehensive  AEE 2 EWE AT
income for the year - - - - 52379 - (1,126) 105,388 156641
Dividends recognised as RADIELRE.
distribution (note 14) ~ (F&E14) - - - £ = - - (160568 (160568)
Transfertostatutory BB AT
reserve - - - 12,141 - - - (12141) -
Balance at 31 December RZE—+ 45
2017 +—H =t RHE 200210 42554 41016 175631 98,148 11,109 (1,46) 83324 650,746
Profit for the year RER T = = = = = = = 26259 26259
Other comprehensive  AFEEMZHE (Fx)
(expense) income Wit
for the year - - - - (32421) - 3372 - (29,049)
Total comprehensive  AEERE (Fx) Kl
(expense) income
for the year - - - - (32421) - 3372 26259 (2790)
Dividends recognised as BERADIEL MRS
distribution (note 14) ~ (F&£14) - - - - - - - e0) 6100
Transfer tostatutory ~ BEETHE
reserve - - - 495 - - - (495) -
Balance at 31 December P’ =Z— )\
2018 ﬂ‘_ﬂ =+—-B%%E 200210 42,554 41016 176,126 65,727 11,109 2126 12987 551,855
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Capital surplus

The capital surplus represents the difference between the consideration paid
and the relevant share of the carrying value of the subsidiaries’ net assets
acquired upon the reorganisation of the Group in year 2002.

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the owners of the Company immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed.

Statutory reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), the PRC companies with foreign investment are required to transfer a
certain percentage of its profit after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulations (the net profit under the PRC generally accepted accounting
principles (the “PRC GAAP")), to the general reserve fund and enterprise
expansion fund. Distribution of these reserves shall be made in accordance with
the Article of Association and approved by the board of directors each year.
Other PRC companies are required to transfer a certain percentage of their net
profit under the PRC GAAP to the statutory surplus reserve fund until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of their paid-in capital.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, Taiwan companies shall set
aside 10% of their statutory net income each year for the legal reserve, until the
reserve balance has reached the paid-in share capital amount.

These above-mentioned reserves and funds cannot be used for purposes
other than those for which they were created and are not distributable as cash
dividends.

meERB B
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE_ZT-N\F+_A=+—RHILFE

xR
BARBEENREREE SR _FA%E
SHEFTEN B AR AR FE 2 25 -

Bt m(E
REFSHBARE - ROEEETERMRE
HDEBREBMEIETEADEAA °

EE

RiphEARLME ([HBE]) BREGRR
5l - PESNERE AR ARRETE SR
BEZEBEEN ([PEARSFRAET
MM FETESLERE —RERES LD
ERRED - DIRAERHBARBRREME
RAMNZATEET  TKESSTFIE - H
R B R RZAKREFE QRS RANE TR
ETEOHLBEREZTRMNFEERES  BE
AEBBHBEESEREDBBAR50%4
1k e

REBEELOIRAED - aERRSFABRE
EEFW 0% 1EREERE - ERAER
BEREIERASEAL -

it EREMES TR AEZ S AN
HEeEENIIEMAE - RTERIER SR

BENH

BAXEYRBEERART —FT-/\FFH 95



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv-_r\/\IEr M7 /)II_, i'%

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-\F+ZA=+—HLFE

2018 2017
—B-N\E —T—tfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETEH
Profit before tax FRFH R A 39,157 146,738
Adjustments for: KRB N5 EIE
Interest income MEMA (3,020) (4,325)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BMEMEREBITE 23,244 20,587
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWZE - ME M&E 2 EE 970 191
Release of prepaid lease payments BoBe B titEER 1,234 1,180
Amortisation of intangible assets ER A 1,117 -
Allowance for obsolete inventories PREGFERE 10,853 1,737
Loss on disposal of inventories EEWREEXR 5,167 -
Impairment loss, net of reversal — financial assets REETE (FOBREEE)
—SREE (2,267) 3,457
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital &3&& & 28R 2 K2R SRE 76,455 169,565
Increase in inventories FEE (3,703) (37,293)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables ﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁz/\iﬁﬂﬂ ORs) 4,990 (40916)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables S R E M EWEEFOR A ($E0) 24,986 (28,388)
Increase in contract costs a ,,\’Uﬁﬁizliigjlﬂ (798) -
Increase in amounts due from related parties JE L5 B B T R IEE N (420) =
Increase in contract liabilities EHIEEIL 12,484 =
Decrease in deferred income BEIEN z= Rk - (242)
Cash generated from operations GRS AT VIS 113,994 62,726
Income taxes paid B FSHIIE (37,305) (41,550)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHASREFR 76,689 21,176
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-F-\FT-A=1—ALFE

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —EF—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE - BENEE (51,826) (32,290)
Purchase of land use right fEE i AR - (369)
Interest received 2 UF & 3,020 4325
Net cash outflows on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33)  UKBEMIEB A FIIR &R F5E
(BfF5E33) (18,923) -
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABIRRITER - (3,669)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETBHMAZRESFHE (67,729) (32,003)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITY METHTARESFEE
Dividends paid ERRE (96,101) (160,568)
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERBLEEWRD (87,141) (171,395)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R—B—BREREALEEY 288,903 428,633
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ExRESFH o HE (20,738) 31,665
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER Rt+-A=+—HAZHRER
BEEEY
represented by bank balances and cash ERITREE RS 181,024 288,903
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wm

BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE-Z—

98

NET_A=T—HILFE

General

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Cayman Islands on 29 June 2001 as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 28 March 2002. Prior to 3
October 2018, the Company's parent and ultimate holding company are
Standard Cosmos Limited and Next Focus Holding Limited, respectively,
and both were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Since 3 October
2018 and as at 31 December 2018, Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama)
S.A, Insbro Holdings Limited and Standard Cosmos Limited are substantial
corporate shareholders of the Company. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the

corporate information to this annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of skin care, beauty and
aroma-therapeutic products, health supplements, make-up products and
beauty apparatus and (b) provision of skin treatments, beauty and spa
services, medical cosmetology services, skin care consulting and beauty
training. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2018

—RER
BAEZEMREARAT ([AAF]) B
—EEEFERNATNARERSHSHE
ik AEREERART - ERHBE=
TE_F=AZT\HREEBS aﬁ/m\ﬁi
SHARAR (TBEAT]) £ o
—A$+HZEW $QTZTW“
=PRI AR5 Bl AStandard Cosmos
lelted&Next Focus Holding Limited * &
RARHRRBER R RS -
BT \F+AZBRR=-ZT—N\F
+TZHA=1+—H 2EXeRFmE (BE=x
B)BROBRAF - REIFERERA A
K Standard Cosmos Limited &4 A Al £ &
BERR - ARalzadzMREEREE
EEMB A BEBERAFR 2 ARE
B ©

ARRAB—FKREERATR - KRR K

HB LA (HIAKRE]) EEXH
REBENHEEEEm - B MAEH
Euﬂu CRERM - {tﬂﬁﬁl&%m{ﬁ%&
bR LS &2 - X7 MOKERSS -
F%”HWTX AL EEEEF?HEWLA&%

BiEdl e

HEHNBARM T EEXZKETR
ARA SRR -

REeMBRERABT ([HB]) 2
5 TRRARRIMEEEEH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Amendments to Hong 2.
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the

current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HK(FRIO)-Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Transfer of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments

to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s

financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or

on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\F+ZA=+—HLFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS ER R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_ZT-)/\Ft-_HA=1t—HILFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.1

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard recognised at
the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at
the date of initial application, if any, is recognised in the opening
retained earnings (or other components of equity, as appropriate)
and comparative information has not been restated. Furthermore,
in accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group
has elected to apply the Standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue and the related

interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources

which arise from contracts with customers:

Sale of a range of products including skin care, beauty and
aroma-therapeutic products, health supplements, make-up

products and beauty apparatus

Provision of skin treatments, beauty, spa and medical

cosmetology services

Information about the Group's performance obligations and the
accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are
disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE KRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+A=+—RHLFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong 2. ERA#FH I RKETEEBH K

Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) HREEZERN((BERUBREE
(Continued) Al 1) ¢
2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 21 BEAVBREEAF1ISHER
(Continued) BrIKWA (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15 BHRERE BN IEHRELERFE 1555
FEENEERE
The impact of transition to HKFRS 15 arising from the initial RAEBFZEWAEEELEHXE
application of HKFRS 15 on the Group's major revenue generating BBV REERE155RFTESE
operation was insignificant on retained earnings at 1 January 2018. BEE BB HREERIFE 155 E

T \F—A-ARBENNHY

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised THREN_E—N\F—A—HKN
in the consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January FEMBRRARTAERSEIEL
2018. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not AR - N BHEEEZENIEE
been included. NEIEEA o
Carrying amounts Carrying amounts
previously reported under HKFRS 15
Notes at 31 December 2017 Reclassification  at 1 January 2018
R-Z-N\%F
ERIER —HA—H
—ET—+F RESBHBRE
+=ZA=+—H ZERIZE155
liEss ZHRHEREE B¥oE 2 IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET
Current Liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables & 5 & E b fEF
BRIK @) 91,282 4,151) 87,131

Contract liabilities BRAE @/(b) = 10,132 10,132

Deferred income RIES S (b) 5,981 (5981) -

Notes: BsE

(@  As at 1 January 2018, advances from customers of HK$4,151,000 (@ RZE—NF—HA—H %aist
previously included in trade and other payables were reclassified to ANE 5 REMEMNERNEF 2
contract liabilities. 4,151,000 TEEFMHEESE

WAL -

(b) At the date of initial application, included in the total deferred by REXEABY @ECEKSTF
income, HK$5,981,000 related to the consideration received for skin 5,981,000 jT JHEE L (B 738 ~ =
treatments, beauty and spa services. The balance was reclassified to BARKERGHEWRRERR -
contract liabilities upon application of HKFRS 15. ZERERIEAB B iR ELER

FISRHEHDRESHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PEPN

Ny =|

B R R RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_ T \E+_A=+—HUIFE

2.

102

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.1

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15
(Continued)

For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating activities
under indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2018,
movements in working capital have been computed based on
opening statement of financial position as at 1 January 2018 as
disclosed above.

The following table summarises the impacts of applying HKFRS 15
on the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018 and its consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the current year for each of
the line items affected. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position

FERAMAIREETEEBYB

WREER ([FEBUMBHREE
Al ]) &)

2.1

ERMBHREEREISHREET
EBRTHWA (#)
HXERBR B KIRELERIZE 1555
EENZEME (&)
RIEEEEREEHE_S—\F+
ZA=T—HLEFELEETEME
RERE  €ELESBFHEREL
XHEER-_T—N\F—H—HNH
T EARARETE -

TRBE T A BB 155 458
FSHUARER =T —\E+ =
A=+—BEARBRAESR
A EERAER R MR TR R
hERYEEE 2 VE - TRAM
BUYLE R TRIFER -

HESUBRRROE

Amounts without
application of

Notes Asreported Adjustments HKFRS 15
REREBIK
HREERE 155
bz B2 FeEE 23HNE8E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET
Current assets REEE
Contract costs A HIPK AN @) 798 (798) -
Non-current assets FRBEE
Deferred tax assets RIERIRE @/(d) 5,234 (1,348) 3,886
Current Liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M FE AR R (b)/(d) 93,501 6,219 99,720
Contract liabilities BHEE (0b)/()/(d) 22,616 (22,616) -
Deferred income EIEU 25 © - 12,150 12,150
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)
2.1
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

(Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of profit and loss and

other comprehensive income

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-F-N\Ft-A=t—ALEE

2. ERFHITIRKRESTEBUKE
WREER ([FEBUMBHREE
Al ]) &)

2.1

ERMBHREEREISHREET
EBRTHWA (#)
HXERBR B KIRELERIZE 1555
EENZEME (&)
HirgEEREMS
&

L&E3:0k-7

Amounts without
application of

Notes Asreported Adjustments HKFRS 15

REREHE

B R EZEAI

bz B2 BAR E1SH2TNESEE

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET FET FHET

Revenue WA (d) 369,525 6,191 375,716
Cost of sales FHER A (d) (146,665) (1,944) (148,609)

Gross profit EF 222,860 4,247 227,107

Distribution and selling DIE R HE R

expenses (a) (120,200) (798) (120,998)

Profit before tax BRTE AR A 39,157 3,449 42,606
Income tax expense FrisHif X (@)/(d) (12,898) (1,348) (14,246)

Profit for the year REE A 26,259 2,101 28,360
BAEEDRRERAR —T—/\FFHR 103



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=+—RHLFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong

FERAMAIREETEEBYB
BELA((BERMBHREE

Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) =

(Continued) Al 1) ¢

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 21 BEAMKRSEAF1SHER
(Continued) FaRINWA (%)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15
(Continued)
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows

BREREBMBEREERE 155
FIEENTERE (&)
HESRERERNVTE

Amounts without
application of

104
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As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
RERBBIMK
HEERE155
228, FEEE 23N EE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETEH
Profit before tax B AR AR A 39,157 3,449 42,606
Operating cash flows before movements — &iE& & S ER] 2
in working capital KEIRERE 76,455 3,449 79,904
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 REMER
BRARIE N 4,990 2,068 7,058
Increase in contract costs B HIRK AN D (798) 798 -
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities AHBaEEN Crd) 12,484 (12,484) -
Increase in deferred income IR 218N - 6,169 6,169




2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

2.1

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Group incurred incremental commission paid to franchisees in
connection with sales of services contracts with customers. Under
HKAS 18, these amounts were previously expensed as incurred.
Upon application of HKFRS 15, the amounts of HK$798,000 and
HK$200,000 were recognised as contracts costs and related deferred
tax, respectively.

The amount of HK$4,275,000 in relation to balance of advances
from customers had been recognised as contract liabilities upon
application of HKFRS 15 as at 31 December 2018.

Upon application of HKFRS 15, the amount of HK$12,150,000 in
relation to balance of consideration received for skin treatments,
beauty, spa and medical cosmetology services had been recognised
as contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018.

Under HKAS 18, the Group recognised sales of product without
taking the option granted to the customers to acquire additional
goods into consideration and recognised the cost relating to
the additional goods. Upon application of HKFRS 15, the Group
deferred the recognition of revenue and cost by HK$6,191,000 and
HK$1,944,000, respectively allocated to the option until the future
goods are transferred. The related deferred tax of HK$1,548,000 was
recognised.

The amount of HK$6,191,000 in relation to balance of consideration
from sales of products relating to the option granted the customers
to acquire additional goods had been recognised as contract
liabilities upon application of HKFRS 15 as at 31 December 2018.
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2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related

amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and the related consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets and 3)
general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification
and measurement requirements (including impairment under
ECL model) retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and
has not applied the requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference between
carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained earnings and other components of equity, without

restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under HKAS

39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 3.

There was no impact on the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities and other items subject to
ECL under HKFRS 9 at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Leases'

Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement'

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle'
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Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effectlve (Continued)
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Except for the new HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition, HKFRS
16 requires sales and leaseback transactions to be determined based on
the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant
asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes requirements
relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments
as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and
those classified as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into
a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as financing
cash flows by the Group, while upfront prepaid lease payments will
continue to be presented as investing cash flows in accordance with the

nature.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid lease payments
for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor, HKFRS
16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an

operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$27,422,000 as disclosed in note 31. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition
of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits paid
of HK$847,000 and refundable rental deposits received of HK$306,000 as
rights and obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on
the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly,
the carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised
cost. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be considered
as additional lease payments and included in the carrying amount of
right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received

would be considered as advance lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The Group
elects the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(FRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply
this standard to contracts that were not previously identified as containing
a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(FRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group will
not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which already
existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group
elects the modified retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS
16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
to opening retained earnings without restating comparative information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements are determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in

HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

3.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash

flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at
fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of
cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the
cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating units, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating unit
within a group of cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation (or the
cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit (or the group of cash-generating units) retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of
HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or

an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of
HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including allocation
of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance obligations
(provide products and services), the Group allocates the transaction price
to each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis, except for the allocation of discounts and variable consideration.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service underlying
each performance obligation is determined at contract inception. It
represents the price at which the Group would sell a promised good
or service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not
directly observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or
services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
is measured based on output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining goods
or services promised under the contract, that best depict the Group's
performance in transferring control of goods or services.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration (sales rebates), the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled using
the most likely amount method.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that such an
inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the estimated
transaction price (including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully
the circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of
HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is a
performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself
(ie. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to
be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service before
that good or service is transferred to a customer.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the Group
incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as an asset if it
expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is subsequently
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the assets

relate.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates
and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Goodes, services and interests
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset. Other than investment properties
measured under fair value model, such costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held under
operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which includes
both leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and building element
at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted for
as investment properties under the fair value model. When the payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and building
elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the leasehold land

is under finance lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (ie. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of

translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising
on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits
is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan
assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognised
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or
loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the

beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well

as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

net interest expense or income; and

remeasurement.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the actual deficit or surplus
in the Group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the
Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit
and when it recognises any related restructuring costs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits (Continued)
Discretionary contributions made by employees or third parties reduce
service cost upon payment of these contributions to the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans specify that there will be contributions
from employees or third parties, the accounting depends on whether the
contributions are linked to service, as follows:

If the contributions are not linked to services (for example
contributions are required to reduce a deficit arising from losses
on plan assets or from actuarial losses), they are reflected in the
remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset).

If contributions are linked to services, they reduce service costs. For
the amount of contribution that is dependent on the number of
years of service, the entity reduces service cost by attributing the
contributions to periods of service using the attribution method
required by HKAS 19 paragraph 70 for the gross benefits. For the
amount of contribution that is independent of the number of years
of service, the entity reduces service cost in the period in which the

related service is rendered.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as
an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Share-based payment

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing
similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined at
the grant date without taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve). At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding

adjustment to the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share options

reserve will continue to be held in share options reserve.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary

difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and freehold land
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction
as described below and freehold land) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other than
properties under construction and freehold land held for use less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease payments
provided during the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under construction are carried
at cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in

the manner intended by the management).

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of the Group's property
interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis

as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible, intangible assets and contract costs
other than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible, intangible assets with finite useful lives and
contract costs to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible asset, intangible assets and contract
costs other than goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets capitalised
as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group assesses and recognises
any impairment loss on other assets related to the relevant contracts in
accordance with applicable standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for
assets capitalised as contract costs is recognised to the extent the carrying
amounts exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that the Group
expects to receive in exchange for related goods or services less the costs
which relate directly to providing those goods or services that have not
been recognised as expenses. The assets capitalised as contract costs
are then included in the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit
to which they belong for the purpose of evaluating impairment of that

cash-generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible asset, intangible assets and contract
costs other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
of inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon

application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

0]

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions

in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which

are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade and other

receivables, amounts due from related parties, pledged bank deposits,

bank balances and cash). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting

date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions
in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on
these assets are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances

and/or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions

in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

@

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when

assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions

in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to have
low credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
dnvestment grade’as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions

in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(ii) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the

following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions

in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent

recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at

the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions

in accordance with note 2) (Continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be
available, the financial instruments are grouped on the following

basis:

Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash are each assessed as a separate group. Amounts due
from related parties are assessed for expected credit losses

on an individual basis);

Past-due status;

Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk

characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost

of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade and other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any

impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest

would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
terms of the customers, observable changes in national or local economic

conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (Continued)
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of inventories

The Group reviews inventories on a product-by-product basis at the
end of each reporting period, and recognised allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items that are no longer suitable for use in
production or trading. The management estimates the net realisable value
for such items based primarily on the latest invoice prices, sales after year
end and current market conditions less all estimated costs and expenses
necessary to sell the products. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying
amount of inventories net of allowance for inventory of HK$15,985,000
(2017: HK$10,481,000) was HK$74,313,000 (2017: HK$85,077,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or fair value
less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or changes in
facts and circumstances which results in downward revision of future cash
flows, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2018, the
carrying amount of goodwill was HK$31,407,000(2017: HK$27,095,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 19.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade receivables.
The provision rates are based on debtor’s aging as groupings of
various debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is
based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables with significant
balances and credits impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables are disclosed in notes 21
and 37(b), respectively.

Estimated useful lives and impairment of intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related amortization
charges for its intangible assets. This estimate is based on the historical
experience, the expected usage, as well as the stability of the industry
in which the intangible assets is related and changes in the market
demand for the services output related to the intangible assets. The Group
will increase the amortisation charges where useful lives are less than
previously estimated, or will write off or write down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The Group regularly reviews whether there are any indications of
impairment and recognises an impairment loss if the carrying amount
of an asset is lower than its recoverable amount. The Group tests for
impairment for intangible assets whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. These calculations require the use of estimates, such as discount
rates, future profitability and growth rates. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of intangible assets
(without impairment loss recognised) was HK$17,122,000 (2017: nil).
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5. Revenue 5. WA
A. For the year ended 31 December 2018 A, BE-Z-N\F+=ZA=+-—
HLEFE
(i)  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers (i) EBEFPFTAWAZAH
For the year ended
31 December 2018
BE-Z—N\F
t=-A=t+—-H
HFE
HK$'000
FHET
Types of goods or services EmSREER
Sales of goods EmiHE 348,728
Service income AR Y e 20,797
Total 5T 369,525
Geographical markets 39 3%
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") RREE A RFFE ([HPEIARE]) 292,675
Taiwan =) 73,315
Others Hity 3,535
Total 5T 369,525
Timing of revenue recognition EFRU A B R
A point in time T S (R B FERR 348,728
Over time I8 B P R 2 20,797
Total 5T 369,525
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5. Revenue (Continued)
A. For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Sale of products (revenue recognised at one point in
time)

The Group sells a range of products including skin
care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic products, health
supplements, make-up products and beauty apparatus
directly to the franchisees.

For sales of products to the franchisees, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred
to the franchisees, being at the point the goods are
delivered to the franchisees. Following the delivery,
the franchisees has full discretion over the manner
of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the
primary responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to
the goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 120 days
upon delivery.

Sales of products with services (multiple performance
obligations)

The Group provides skin treatment, beauty and spa
services through its self-owned spas and provides
medical cosmetology services through its self-owned
medical beauty clinics.

The service is considered to be a distinct service as
it is both regularly supplied by the Group to other
customers on a stand-alone basis and is available
for customers from other providers in the market.
The Group has a present right to payment from the
customers for the products with services. Transaction
price is allocated between sales of products and the
services on a relative standalone selling price basis.
The transaction price allocated to these services is
recognised as a contract liability at the time of the
initial sales transaction and is released when services
delivered to the customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_ T \E+_A=+—HUIFE
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Revenue (Continued) 5. WA &)
A.  For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued) A, BE-Z-N\F+=ZA=+-—
HIEFE (&)
(iii)  Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance (il PEMEHEEFEANETE
obligation for contracts with customers HNEKE 2R ZEK
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance RZE-—NEFE+Z_A="+—
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 H: 2BEEHT CREEX
December 2018 and the expected timing of recognising B AREENK) BHEE
revenue are as follows: LR ERRERRANTE
TR ¢
Sales of products
EmiHE
HK$'000
FHET
Within one year —FR 22,616
B. For the year ended 31 December 2017 B. BZE-Z—tH+=-A=+—
HIEFE
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: REERFEWARHDHTIOT :
Year ended
31 December 2017
HZE
T —t5F
+=-A=+—A~
Jl==351
HK$'000
FET
Sales of goods Emigs 393,872
Service income AR s 5,707
Total #st 399,579
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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T ISRk MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE_ZT-N\F+_A=+—RHILFE

Operating Segments 6. &I
Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") of the BIEHBERDE MmO ERER - AR
Company, being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the AEfTHAEE (TR (AEESE
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance BARA([EEEEREAD) BER
focuses on geographical segments by location of customers. ERFEBIREFAMEME DA
SE o
Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating segments under HKFRS BREms - BIBEESMEHmELERF5R
8 are as follows: ZHTE  NEE A HREREE DA
T
1. ThePRC 1. RBEARE
2. Taiwan 2. =
3. Others (Hong Kong and Malaysia) 3. Hfh (BERSKAR)
Segment revenues and results DEBUA R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from TXAEAREE ZFERLEWAREEIR
continuing operations by reportable and operating segments. Al #E R E D EEH 2 AT ©
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z—N\F+-A=+—HLEFE
The PRC Taiwan Others Total
FRE KB =) Hith wat
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET FHET FHERT
Revenue WA 292,675 73,315 3,535 369,525
Segment profit (loss) DELmA (EE) 39,111 8,643 (67) 47,687
Unallocated corporate expenses AN WYNCI-gun (11,550)
Unallocated income Ao BL U 3,020
Profit before tax BREL AT A 39,157
BAELEYREARAR T \FFHK 147
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=+—RHLFE

6. Operating Segments (Continued) 6.
Segment revenues and results (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017

BEHE (&)
DERARELE (8)
BE_ZE—+tE+-_A=+—HIL=EE

The PRC Taiwan Others Total

elEipN 173 B HAth 45T

HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET

Revenue WA 319,228 77,232 3,119 399,579
Segment profit (loss) SEREF| (E1E) 135,255 18,550 (688) 153,117
Unallocated corporate expenses AP AR (10,704)
Unallocated income Romdizs 4325
Profit before tax FR L AR A 146,738

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit (loss)
represents the profit earned (loss incurred) by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs, directors’ salaries and interest
income. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results of each
segment. No analysis of segment asset and segment liability is presented
as the CODM does not regularly review such information for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment. Therefore, only
segment revenue and segment results are presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-Z—)\F+-A=1t—HLFE

Operating Segments (Continued) 6. KEDI 4w
Other segment information Hittm BER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE_Z—N\G+-A=+—HLEFE
Segment and
consolidated
The PRC Taiwan Others total
DER
FR B KB =) Hity FEHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET FET
Amounts included in the measure of 3 &7 (E518)
segment profit (|oss): ST A TSI
Depreciation of property, Y - BEREEITE
plant and equipment 18,258 4,963 23 23,244
Release of prepaid lease payments BB AL EE R 1,234 - - 1,234
Amortisation of intangible assets L EE 1,117 - - 1,117
Loss on disposal of property, HEWZE -
plant and equipment R M 3 < 518 815 155 - 970
Allowance for obsolete inventories [REFERE 10,073 731 49 10,853
Loss on disposal of inventories ZEREFIAR 5,167 - - 5,167
(Reversal of allowance) allowance B SRR
on trade receivables (BetEREm]) BetEs (2,170) 13 4 (2,153)
BAEEYREARAR ZZT—/\FFHK 149
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-T/\FT-A=t—ALEE

6. Operating Segments (Continued) 6. KEDI 4w
Other segment information (Continued) Hitn BER (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BHE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE
Segment and
consolidated
The PRC Taiwan Others total
DEB K&
)TN 3 = EAh, o= G
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHT FAT FAT FAT
Amounts included in the measure of 3 &7 (E518)
segment profit (10ss): FTATSIFRER ¢
Depreciation of property, W - BEREEITE
plant and equipment 16,183 4,388 16 20,587
Release of prepaid lease payments Biml B A LA ER 1,180 - - 1,180
Loss on disposal of property, HEWZ - HERE&E
plant and equipment ZE1E 191 = = 191
Allowance (reversal of allowance) REFERE
for obsolete inventories (Bei@aEm) 1,751 46 (60) 1737
Allowance on trade receivables B 5 R 3457 = = 3457
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Operating Segments (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group is principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and sale of a
range of products including skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic
products, health supplements, make-up products and beauty apparatus
and (b) provision of skin treatments, beauty and spa services, medical
cosmetology services and skin care consulting and beauty training. The
analysis of the Group’s revenue by type of business for the year are set out
in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's non-current assets are presented based on the geographical
location of the assets as detailed below:

6.

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\F+ZA=+—HLFE

e SE (m)

#4305
AEMIEREQEERPEES =
B RBHES  BEAS  LHSRE
REREEASHEER - ROIREIE
WP ERRONERYE BEEARE
DA T L S T2 BB R AR 7S R E R 3 o AN
&= @ F R A REBERIEL 2 58
PR A B ISR M TS o

AEEZIERBEEREEMEMINF
B2

2018 2017
—EN\E —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET

The PRC PR B K e 273,219 234,300
Taiwan B e 49,036 51,701
Others Hib 213 28
322,468 286,029

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers
The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer contributed
10% or more to the Group's revenue for both 2018 and 2017.

Mz SERBEETEESMIARRERA

BEREEFFEHR
AEBEZEFERER N2 N\F

R_Z—tFMEFESF  LEEM
BE-RPZAERMAARNEE Z B A10%K
PAE e
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\E+-_A=+—HIFE

7. Other Income and Other Gains 7. HttmAFE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Interest on bank deposits RITIF TS 3,020 4,325
Rental income from investment properties A 2 B Was 296 206
Rental income from other properties and H bz Kakig 2 el
equipment 1,958 1,869
Government grants (Note) BSE e (Fs) 2,230 4187
Income resulting from expired REFIEINEEEES 2 W
franchisees deposit - 1,594
Others EHAh, 573 698
8,077 12,879
Note: The government grants represent unconditional tax refunds received from MizE : BT R Bh & 5 2N £ (3B R B oK P 4% 4 T /B
the local government in compensation for taxes incurred and paid by the N EVES K A H T BT A9 8 (64 55 UR
PRC operating subsidiaries of the Group. BUBERBE LRI MORK -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_ZTZ-N\E+_A=1+—HU=FE

Impairment Losses, Net of Reversal 8. WEME (HEREE)
2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FAET

Impairment (reversed) losses recognised on:  JE{E (B[E) EIEFERR

—Trade receivables — goods and services — B HRIERR — B MRS (2,153) 3,457
— Other receivables — Hth R AR X (114) =
(2,267) 3457
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_ZE—N\EFEt+_A=+—HIEEE
are set out in note 37(b). BB E BN M EE37(b) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_ T \E+_A=+—HUIFE

154

Income Tax Expense 9. FBEHAX
2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
The charge comprises: XHBLE
Taxation in the PRC R B R BERR TE
Current year REE 14,125 23,171
Over provision in prior years B FE R (226) (1,383)
Withholding tax on dividends A% S FEFEL 9,477 6,178
23,376 27,966
Taxation in Taiwan BETIE
Current year REZ 2,199 3312
Under provision in prior years BEFERBTR 5 13
Withholding tax on dividends A& S FEE 3,308 5,305
5,512 8,630
Taxation in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions &8 K& H At Bl AR & Fi 18
Current year REE 538 340
Over provision in prior years B EEREERE (135) (172)
403 168
Deferred taxation (note 30) IEEFSTE (Mf:E30)
Current year REZ (16,393) 4,586
12,898 41,350
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Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. The statutory withholding income tax rate
for non-PRC resident is 10%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Taiwan,
dividend withholding tax is imposed at a rate of 10% and 21% on
dividends that are declared in respect of profits earned by PRC and Taiwan
subsidiaries respectively and that are received by non-local resident
entities. Withholding tax on dividends of approximately HK$9,477,000
(2017: HKS6,178,000) and HK$3,308,000 (2017: HK$5,305,000) for the PRC
and Taiwan were recognised respectively.

Corporate Income Tax in Taiwan is charged at 20% and 17% in year 2018
and 2017, respectively.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will
be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\F+ZA=+—HLFE

FriE®imx (&)

B ARKABECERERE ([0
2ERERE]) ROEFEEEE I
5+ e B A B BB A T 2 B 2R 8050 o
FREERMNEEENBABRES
10% °

B B K BE &2 & AB R A 5] AR ) -
B B OARE K & KB A R BENAI FT 1S
i ) i B I B8 FEANHJE R 1 U 2
BRE - IRETEHTE 5 B AR10%F121% o
R B KRE & & & 2 BR B TE IR 499,477,000
BT (ZZ — £ F 161780007 7T) &
3,308,0007% 7T (= & — £ 4F : 5,305,000/
JT) EDRIER -

R-B—N\FER-F—LFE - &8
(R RS BEH BER20% R 1 7%5HE -

NRZZE-—NEF=R=_+—8  FB LA
2RACE—LE[B (BT (B
75%) BROIERY(TEOIER]) - 5| AF
FEMEH - EAERR = —NEF=
A+ N\AEEERAEARALNEBZAR
FWTE - REFESHBERG - &8
HBEEERGIR25% R E A S
2,000,000/ JT S 48 Bt 18 + I 1% 1216.5%
2 i R 8 492,000,000 7T A L SE A 2 B
IH e REENEHMAG « SEEBL
i P IS ML B2 16.5% 2 Bt — TR R EHHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=+—RHLFE

9. Income Tax Expense (Continued) 9. FISHEX ()
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per AEERET HEGEERREMET
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive W RAATRBRB AR FIERAT ¢

income as follows:

2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit before tax FRAH A A 39,157 146,738
Tax at the PRC income tax rate of 25% (Note) R B KB SEFTS T R 25%s T E
FRE (FsE) 9,789 36,685
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax PRI 2 B &
purpose 3,324 3,284
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  H/B R Rt Uz 2 Tl TS 52 28 (529) (506)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BB KRR 2 TS E R
recognised (3,271) (6,648)
Over provision in respect of prior years iﬂ?\fifgﬁf@ﬁéﬁ (356) (1,542)
Effect of different tax rates of REMENEEREZEMEBATZ
subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions TRAMER 2 (1,011) (2,600)
Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed BT R AEN G ENEARZ
earnings of the PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries ROIRER ZELEFIBEE 4,952 12,677
Income tax expense for the year REZFEHRZ 12,898 41,350
Note: The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC tax rate) in the jurisdiction where ek EAAEEEEETEMEZ AEER
the operation of the Group is substantially based is used. ZEMBIE (BB ARER ) -
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10. Profit for the Year

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ek

35 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_ZT-/\Ft-_A=t—HLHFE

10. FERF

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—t5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit for the year has been arrived at after RERHMDHER (FFA) ToIEE -
charging (crediting):
Staff costs: BT
Directors' emoluments (note 11) EEME (FIzEn) 6,212 5,520
Other staff salaries and allowances HAth B T K284 88,676 79,690
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, RNEAFEER  TREES
excluding directors:
— defined contribution plans (note 27 (b)) — EREHFETE (727 (b)) 16,927 16,197
— defined benefit plan (note 27 (a)) — EsEEAlErEl (FEE27 (@) 123 116
Total staff costs BITRALEEE 111,938 101,523
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #13 - BB M RETE 23,244 20,587
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 1,117 =
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense B HER AR 2 FERHK 116,227 79,819
Release of prepaid lease payments B g Bt tHEER 1,234 1,180
Amortisation of contract costs B KI5 5,315 =
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 3,611 3,367
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE « BERXEZEER
equipment 970 191
(Reversal of allowance) allowance for trade B SRR (BB RE) B
receivables (2,153) 3,457
Allowance for obsolete inventories, included in -~ FRETF & (GTAEERK)
cost of sales 10,853 1,737
Loss on disposal of inventories, included in REREEIEL GTAHEKA)
cost of sales 5,167 -
Advertising and promotion expenses BEENMHER 19,864 13,510
Net exchange loss b 5 BT 1R SRR 1,319 3713
BAELEYRIEARAR ZZT—\FFHK 157
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—RHLFE
11. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments M. EERFETHAEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve (2017: seven) EffkENT=8 (Z2—1F : £5)
directors and the chief executive were as follows: BEERFBTHRAE AT :
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z—N\F+-A=+—-HLEFE
Directors Interim
£ Chief~ Chief
Brecutive ~ Evecutive Chief
Total M Ms.  Executive
DTSl MilEE DrSU DrSU  MeCHEN  MeLU - MeHSEH  DelE MePAN MHSIAO MsLU MeYANG diectors — HSIAO YANG  MsIN Total
YerYo o MingTa ChenCheng  ShHsyu Rueplong  Chi-Chant Pang:Chang  Chien  Yifan WemChung  YuMin  ShibChien  emoluments WenChung  Shutwa  Yenling 018
e
B OeR g8 fRes &
BRIAC MR BESAr GRUEr RERAE BMERL BMERT  BERC ERAAY BUBRE EARLT BEERT  MOSE DML RMERT MERGE 3N
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO  HKSO0  HKS000 HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKS0O0
TR fEn T TEr T AL AR Thr TR TR TR TR Tén TR TR TR TER
(Notei] ~ (Noted)  (Noteil)  (Noteii (Noteii] ~ (Noteii)  (Noteiv)  (Notev)  (Notew)  (Notevi) (Notev) ~ (Notevil) ~ (Notevii)
(M) W) (B (W& () (R (R (B Ok (K (M) (Rai) (i
fees e 1,000 108 104 W PLi| N0 167 167 30 1% k| 4684 673 588 14 6,069
Otteremoluments  4tE
Slaresandoter  ESREMER
benefs 610 i i) m 135 933 1% 9 2808
Conebutonsto - RAERGTEIESH
Tetiement
beefts scheme 3 (3 3 3 1 17 3% 9 m
Tolemdments B8 108 675 1362 136 W PLi| 0 167 167 5% 1% Ell 6212 1640 884 362 90%
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+A=+—RHLFE

11. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 11. EERFETHAEME (@
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_Z—+F+_HA=1+—HILLFE

Directors

gz (Chief

Total  Brecutive
directors ~ Mr.HSIAO Total
Or. TSAI Mr.LEE DrSU DrSU- MrCHEN MU MeHSEH  emoluments  Wen-Chung 217
YenYu  MingTa ChienCheng  ShHsyu  Rueylong  Chi-Chant Pang-Chang EES 5t
BETRT TMERE HRNBr HIAET WhETE BEERE APSRE  Me#Em BUMtE T-tf
HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS000
Tér  TEr TEn  TEr TR TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn

Fees ik 1000 = 1250 1250 240 240 240 4200 1330 5550
Other emoluments Eftfie
Salaries and other benefits & RE M B - 565 285 285 - - - 1135 1,580 2715
Contributions to retiernent  RVEFIEH 2N
benefits scheme U 55 8 8 - - - 165 85 250
Total emoluments HeasE 1004 620 1578 1578 10 b 2140 550 29% 8515

BAXEYRIRERAT —T—/N\FFH 159



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=+—RHLFE

11. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments

160

(Continued)
Notes:

(i) Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (“Dr. TSAI") was re-designated as a Non-Executive Director
and stepped down from being the chairperson of the Board and been
appointed as an honorary chairperson of the Company on 26 October 2018.
Dr. TSAl resigned as Non-Executive Director on 25 January 2019.

(ii) Mr. LEE Ming-Ta, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu and Mr. HSIEH
Pang-Chang resigned as Directors of the Company on 16 November 2018.

(i)~ Dr. LEI Chien was appointed as as an Executive Director and chairperson of
the Board on 26 October 2018.

(iv)  Mr. PAN Yi-Fan was appointed as a Director of the Company on 26 October
2018.

() Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung ceased to hold office as Chief Executive Officer of the
Group with effect from 9 July 2018 and re-designated as a Director of the
Company on 26 October 2018.

(vi) Ms. LU Yu-Min and Mr. YANG Shih-Chien were appointed as Directors of the
Company on 16 November 2018.

(vii)  Ms. YANG Shu-Hwa was appointed as Interim Chief Executive Officer of the
Group with effect from 9 July 2018 and resigned as Interim Chief Executive
Officer of the Group with effect from 26 October 2018.

(viii)  Ms. LIN Yen-Ling was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Group with
effect from 26 October 2018.

The executive directors' emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group. The non-executive directors' emoluments shown above were
for their services as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors are entitled to a
management bonus aggregately not exceeding 15% of the audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company in respect of
that financial year of the Group, as recommended by the Remuneration
Committee.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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12. Employees’ Emoluments

13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\F+ZA=+—HLFE

12. EEME

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, two

(2017: three) were directors and the chief executives of the Company

whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 11 above.

The emoluments of the remaining three (2017: two) individuals were as

follows:

AEBRERRTMALTH  HARE
ZE—tF: =R) BARREERE
EITHRAER  BEZMEFBERLEX
MaATHE B T=% (ZF—tF:
ME) ALZESmT

2018 2017

—BE-N\F —E—+tF

HK$’000 HKS'000

FHBxT TET

Salaries and other benefits Ha REMER 6,069 2461
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme  3RKEFIET 243k 123 11
6,192 2572

The emoluments of the three (2017: two) individuals were within the

following bands:

=% (ZF—F  BE) ALzBen
T THE -

HK$1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000

Earnings Per Share

1,000,001,8 7T £ 1,500,000 70
1,500,001, 7T 2 2,000,000 75
2,000,00178 7T 22,500,000/ 7T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Headcount Headcount
A AE

- 2

2 —

13. BIRER

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners

of the Company is based on the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$26,259,000 (2017: HK$105,388,000) and on
the number of 2,002,100,932 (2017: 2,002,100,932) ordinary shares of the

Company in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share for both 2018 and 2017 were presented as

there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for both 2018 and 2017.

RRREE AEMEBRERNZF THIRE
A RIHEA A FE(E ) £926,259,000% 7T
(ZZ—+t 4% 1105388000/ 7T) RFENRN
RN A B 1T E AR $2,002,100,9328%
—F—44% :2,002,100,9320%) 5T E o

R-E-—N\FR-FE-LFREFEL
B2 EREERTN  AR-_F—N\F
22—+ FMEFELECDETER
T

BAXEYRIBRERAT —T—/\FFH 161



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=+—RHLFE

14. Dividends 14. BRE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Dividends recognised as distribution FRERBD RS
during the year:
Interim dividend, paid — HK$0.0145 per share BRI EARE — —ZF— )\4F
for 2018 (2017: HK$0.0171 per FAL001458TT (ZF—LF :
share for 2017) —E—+FFRR00171ETT) 29,031 34,236
Special interim dividend, paid — nil for 2018 EIRTRRIREIRR S — — = — \F
(2017: HK$0.0054 per share for 2017) E(ZE—+F: ZT—+F
HA%0.00547% 7T ) - 10811
Final dividend, paid — HK$0.0335 per ERREIRR S — —E—+4F
share for 2017 (2017: HK$0.0327 per FAZO. 0335%75 (Z2—+%F:
share for 2016) T RFHR00327ETT) 67,070 65,469
Special final dividend, paid — nil for 2017 BRI RIREApR S — —E—+4F
(2017: HK$0.025 per share for 2016) m(ZE—tF ZE—RF
BAR0.025%7T) - 50,052
96,101 160,568
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, no final dividend in FHREHBEERR  EFEZTIRM
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017; a final dividend of 22—/ \E+_A=1+—HIFE
HK$0.0335 per share), amounting to nil (2017: HK$67,070,381) has been RERE (ZZE—tF : REKREFE
proposed by the directors. 0033587L) HAZT (ZE—+F:

67,070,38177T) ©
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15. Investment Properties

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\F+ZA=+—HLFE

15. REWE

HK$'000

FAT
FAIR VALUE YNSRI
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—H—H 7,196
Exchange realignment bE R 697
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=-A=+—H 7,893
Exchange realignment B 5, B 219
At 31 December 2018 RZEBE-N\F+=-A=+—H 7,674

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2018
and 2017 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
those dates by Euro-Asia Real Estate Appraisers Firm, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group. Euro-Asia
Real Estate Appraisers Firm is a member of the Institute of Valuers, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at using the
direct comparison approach by reference to market evidence of recent
transaction for similar properties in the similar locations and under the

similar conditions.

REBZEEMER-_Z—N\FR_ZF
—tEFTZA=FT—RHZRAFE " ik
EiE N EYEGEME S B (BEARE
BEWEmEE s BYLEEREEMGER)
R it B HE T 2 B E RS o ;D
TEEMEBEMBESEMAMEMES
(Institute of Valuers) @ 8 + HAHEGHE
B RN AR AR AU
iR BRAMAENFERAEELEE -
W2 EHUYE (W& KA K BHE
) 2R GERMSERRZEE -
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B R R RE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_ T \E+_A=+—HUIFE

15.

164

Investment Properties (Continued)
The carrying value of investment properties shown above is situated on

freehold land in Taiwan.

15. REWE (8)

A=

iR EME (FREEWEXHAR) 2R
KA o

Fair value Significant unobservable Relationship of unobservable
hierarchy Valuation technique input(s) input(s) to fair value

DFE TABRRBAYE

[BIREEE fR{ER % FERTBERZBARE EAPEZBER

Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using market The higher the price per square
=& BEELEE direct comparable and taking into metre, the higher the fair value

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2018

The key inputs are:
FEHABIES :

Price per square metre
YR ERE

account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of
property, etc. of the base level, which
ranged from HK$30,257 to HK$35,062 per
square metre

BFHKRER  EREETSALE
Bt AL E R EAMEREZE - than
—EHEREE WEEES 87
77 KB & 9 730,25778 TT E35,062%8
IT o

FYIKERES - AFEES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE KRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+A=+—RHLFE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. Y% - BERRE
Furniture,
Freehold Leasehold Motor  fixturesand  Construction
land  Buildings improvements  Machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
KA ik Ba-
EEtih ¥ NEEE BEREE RE  KERRE W ERIR At
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000

TEL  TER TiET TR TiEm e TEL  TER

osT AR
At 1 January 2017 RZE—t4

-A-A 15912 171737 55,664 39,884 2379 68653 3763 357992
Exchange realignment [ % 1543 13512 4735 3113 210 5661 535 29309
Additions R - 463 587 90 = 7302 B0 3229
Disposals e - - 612) (378) (237) (995) - (2222)
Transfer i - - - - - 3612 (3612) -
At31December 2017 RZE—+E

+-A=+-H 17455 185712 60374 43539 2352 84233 BI04 417369
Bchange realignment  [E 35 53% (484) (8919) (2457) (2125) (74) (3841) (1103 (19003)
Additions R - - 3964 262 1,062 4558 21452 31,298
Acquired on acquisition  FAYERITB A R)AS

of a subsidlary (note 33)  EBA (BizE33) - - - - - 138 - 138

Disposals e - - (2279 (604) - (9400) - (1)
Transfer it - - 5829 18 - 5633 (11480) -
At31 December 2018 RZE—/\F

+-A=+-H 16971 176793 65431 4109 3340 81321 2573 417519
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2017 S 3

-A-A - 634 42308 23010 1109 50699 - 184450
Exchange realignment ~ FE X GAE - 5382 4042 1851 100 4378 - 15753
Povided fortheyear  AEEEME - 5,586 4748 3412 37 6,504 - 20587
Eliminated on disposals R ER = - (612) (331) (225) (863) = (2,031)
At31December 017 RZE—+E

+-A=+-R - 78292 50486 2794 1321 60718 - 218759
Exchange redlignment [} % - (3718) (2073) (1332) (40) (3215) - (103)
Provided fortheyear  AEEEME - 5433 5372 3236 451 8752 - 23,244
Eliminated on disposals R ER 8 - - (2124) (516) - (8673) - m3n)
At31December 2018  MZE-\F

+-A=1-R - 80007 51661 29330 1732 57582 - 20312
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At31December2018  RZE-N\FE

+-A=+-H 16971 9,786 13770 11,760 1608 23739 253 197207
At31December 017 RZE—+F

+-A=+-R 17455 107420 9888 15597 1031 23515 BI04 198610
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=+—RHLFE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 16.
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress and freehold land, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 40 years

Leasehold improvements The shorter of the unexpired period
of the lease and estimated
useful life of 3 to 10 years

Machinery 5-10years
Motor vehicles 3 -5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2 — 15 years

M - BERSRE (@
E¥ - BERRRER (ERTE
RAAEELIBBIN) REREERE
PREES

BgF 405

HEMEEE KREMBEEFH
fhEr AR
FEH3E104F
(ABFZ & A2

R K i 2s 5—10%F

T8 3— 5%

RE - EEBERERE 2—15F

17. Intangible Assets 7. BEEE
Licenses
AR
HK$'000
FAT
COST ﬁJZZIK
At 1 January 2018 - N\F—-H—H =
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) EQH&ZE%W%’D\ AIRFAE A (M97E33) 19,200
Exchange realignment PEE 5, SR (977)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+-A=+—8H 18,223
AMORTISATION i
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF—H—H -
Provided for the year REEHAN 1117
Exchange realignment HE H A B (16)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+=A=1+—H 1,101
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2018 RN—_E—N\F+=-_A=+—H 17,122
At 31 December 2017 W_ZE—+F+-_H=+—H —

Included within licenses, is an amount of HK$17,122,000 (31 December
2017: nil) representing the carrying amount of the Practice License of
Medical Institution, acquired by way of acquisition of subsidiaries and
initially recognised at its fair value of HK$19,200,000 in 2018.

Licenses are amortised on a straight-line basis over ten years.
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18. Prepaid Lease Payments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE KRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+A=+—RHLFE

18. EALHHEER

2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise AEErBATHHEERBERE
leasehold land rights in the PRC under TR B RBEARBR A HA 1 3t
medium-term land use rights FRESAE CHE T HFERRE 49,714 53,680
Analysed for reporting purposes as: LERMABESITAT ¢
Non-current asset ERBEE 48,530 52,431
Current asset MENEE 1,184 1,249
49,714 53,680
19. Goodwill 19. B&
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+t5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
COST BN
At 1 January nW—H—H 30,287 28,702
Exchange realignment PE 5 T (1,469) 1,585
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33)  3& B U BEMT B A A] (F5E33) 5,781 =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 34,599 30,287
IMPAIRMENT ERIE)
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 RZE—tF—H—H"
and 31 December 2018 —T—+F+=-HA=+—H”
N_ZE-N\F+ZA=+—H 3,192 3,192
CARRYING VALUES fRmE1E
At 31 December R+—A=+—8 31,407 27,095
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=+—RHLFE

19. Goodwiill (Continued)
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to
two individual cash — generating units (CGUs), comprising sale of cosmetic
products in the PRC CGU and medical aesthetics services in the PRC CGU.
The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated impairment losses)
allocated to these units are as follows:

19. HE (®)
HAEURATS  HEECESREME
BUBRSELSMN ReELEN) B
ERREAARNEEAERZRSEL
BRI RRPEAAENEREERRE 2
HeELSEN - HEEEE (BB
SHRERE) HARRE TS B

31/12/2018 31/12/2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
t=RA=+—-8B +=-A=1+—H
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHET THT
Sale of cosmetic products in the PRC (Unit A)  AFRBIAREIEERE M (BRIA) 25,923 27,095
Medical aesthetics services in the PRC (Unit B)  7AHR BRI A FE 5 & B2 B = A AR TS
(%8fzB) 5,484 =
31,407 27,095
Unit A BfIA

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the management covering a five-year
period assuming no growth and cash flows over five years using a growth
rate of 0% and a discount rate of 8.5% (2017: 8.6%). Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation
is based on the unit's past performance and the management’s
expectations for the market development. The management believes that
any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of this unit to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this unit.

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
management of the Group determines that there is no impairment on
Unit A.
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19. Goodwiill (Continued)

Unit B

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period and discount rate of 15.2%. Unit B's cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 5% growth rate. This growth rate
is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Cash flow
projections during the budget period for Unit B is also based on the
budgeted sales and expected gross margins during the budget period.
Expected cash inflows/outflows, which include budgeted sales, gross
margin have been determined on past performance of comparable clinics
and management’s expectations for the market development.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, management of the Group
determines that there is no impairment on Unit B.

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\F+ZA=+—HLFE

19. & (&)

E{uB

BNz AN E S REIRFEREETEE
EoZtBEAANDRBEEENEZR
FHMBRERIS2% AR RS RE
TERI TS - ML A FHMNEMNBERS
MEDHABERSKIEREHES - 718
REDBEMBITEERBABTEE
HABMITEMN TR RER - BEIBE
FHANRSRERA T REREHRA
WBEEHERREHERN X - BHR S
TN R (BIEREEEERERNR)
EREBEANEYRZNBATRARER
BEMIZERNBEET -

HEz_Z—N\F+_A=+—HLHF
B AEBEEEETEMRIERE -

20. Inventories 20. 7F&

2018 2017

—E-)N\F —ET—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT T3

Raw materials BT 40,814 51,477
Finished goods Uk 49,484 44,081
90,298 95,558
Allowance for obsolete inventories MREFERE (15,985) (10,481)
74,313 85,077
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\E+-_A=+—HIFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables 21. ES R HEMEBEWERMR
2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHIT
Trade receivables E 5 EWERRK 73,293 103,240
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (2,363) (5,089)
70,930 98,151
Prepayments TESFRIR 12,134 7,522
Other receivables E b I BR TR 3,503 3616
Total trade and other receivables B 5 REMEW R ARE 86,567 109,289
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for REMRNBHZESN 2E ZEKER
credit losses presented based on dates of delivery of goods. (ENBREEBEREE) REESTOT -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHIT
Aging: ARER -
Within credit period =E K 64,206 78,503
Over credit period but less than 180 days FRBEEHEEI180EN 2,258 6,783
Over 180 days HiE180H 4,466 12,865
70,930 98,151
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21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$6,724,000 which are past
due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$4,466,000
has been past due 180 days or more and is not considered as in default
as the amount will be repaid by the customer based on the supplemental
agreement signed with customers and historical experience. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable to have a more lagging default criterion as the Group
remains a long-term relationship with customers. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's trade receivable
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$19,648,000
which are past due as at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group holds a collateral for a balance of
HK$6,967,000.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\F+ZA=+—HLFE

21. ES R EMERERR ()

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—80" ' A&
EESRWEREHREREERERE
6,724,000 TR AN ¥ &5 B HAE @ BR A0 BR
Ko ZFZMmEERT  4,466,0008 L E
#HA180 A S LA LI RARVEE L - THEAR
BHEEFPEINGRABZEMBILRE
FPHREEEHSE BARAEBEEEF
RERBER RASEeZEAER
ASERTEEREEERASITEEZFRD
BHEE - AEBWERZSEEHETE
ECIEw

RZE—+tF+=ZA=+—8" ' A&
EESRUEREHBELERAE
19,648,000/ 7T PA AN 3 &5 B HA 2 80 B &Y
BRFN - NG B I L EUR (B BB B
& o N B B4 £26,967,00078 L5 B 1K
o

EEMENTRENE F R UWERTR

A

54

2017
—T—+F
HK$'000
FBT

Aging: ARER -

Over credit period but less than 180 days HBBEEHEEI180B N 6,783

Over 180 days HBiB180H

The directors of the Company assessed the credit quality of those debtors
that the balances are past due by reviewing their financial position, the
past repayment record and the experience on any recent history of
default. The amounts are considered recoverable.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit
system to assess the potential customer's credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits to customers are reviewed regularly. The
majority of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have no history of defaulting on repayments.

12,865

19,648

ARRIEFBZREEEHANPHR
N BEMERCENETLHNED
TRMGERENEELER - AAZAN
AEERERER AT LAYR @ o

BEMEMHEFA - AKEMNAREE
ERGUBEERPHNEREERETHMG
YABEREREE AKEHEFPH
HEETEREE - AFBHRAHIK
HENE S RUKERTORE TNETTEEN
B -
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21.

22,

172

Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

21. ES R EMERERR ()

RRBEED

2017

—T—tF

HK$'000

FET

Balance at the beginning of the year FHIERER 1,476

Amounts recovered during the year FRUE SRR (589)
Allowance on receivables FEMAR SR 4,046

Amounts written off as uncollectible s m] O e 58 (115)
Exchange realignment e 5 5 B 271
5,089

As at 31 December 2017, included in the allowance for doubtful debts
are individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
HK$5,089,000, which have been identified with financial difficulties.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 37.

Contract Costs

R-_ZE—+F+-_HA=1+—H8 REH
EEEREEVEREMNEREE S
JFE IR FR 2 48 K 54 H£ 515,089,000 7T °

HE_Z—N\F+-_A=+—HBLFE
MNE 5 &E@EH&ZE&MWQ%%Z%%
BRHIFE37 ©

22. BRI

2018

—B-N\F

RMB’000

ARETR

Incremental costs to obtain contracts BB EHIEERKA 798

Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2018 relate to the
incremental sales commissions paid to franchisees whose selling activities
resulted in customers entering into sale and purchase agreements for
the Group’s services which are still not transferred at the reporting date.
Contract costs are recognised as part of cost of sales in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which revenue from the related
services sales is recognised. The amount of capitalised costs recognised in
profit or loss during the year was HK$5,315,000. There was no impairment
in relation to the costs capitalised during the year.
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23.

24,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pledged Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

In 2015, the Group signed a guarantee agreement and placed bank
deposits with China Merchants Bank of China (“CMBC"), in order for
CMBC to issue guarantee letters to Fengxian government for the Group's
construction project. The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
expirations of the guarantee letters.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the pledged bank
deposits was RMB6,109,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,958,000),
of which RMB3,054,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,479,000) will
be released in 2019 and RMB3,055,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,479,000) will be released in 2020.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's bank deposits of United States
Dollar ("US$") 734,000 (2017: US$536,000) (equivalent to approximately
HKS$5,752,000 (2017: HK$4,185,000)) was denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entity.

Trade and Other Payables

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\F+ZA=+—HLFE

23. M\PRITERBRITEFR

Be

R-ZF—h%F AKEREREB RS
BBEERT ([HERT]) REREBH
ERRITERERERARBERTA
ZBEREBFRDRE - 2 HETRITER
7 FE O K R 1% R B 9 -

R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—H ' Bi&
FIRTTE XA R E A A R %6,109,000
7t (#8 % 7 496,958,000 7T) © H & A
R #3,054,0007T (16 5 7 493,479,000/
) R ZE—NFHRBERRARE
3,055,0007T (#0514 493,479,000 7T ) &%
R T FERE o

R—_ZE—N\F+_A=+—08 &85
734,000 T ([E L) (Z T — £ F:
536,000 7t) (48 & R #95,752,000% 7T
ZE— % 41850008 70)) ZAE
ERTER - DRIEEEEERINEE
BELASN EEEEHE o

24, ESREMEMRERR

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Trade payables B S ENBER 20,537 21,521

Deposits from franchisees e 24,317 25,934

Other tax payables Hth e FRIE 14,229 14,981

Accruals &R 27,938 21,483

Other payables H A FETARFR 6,480 7,363

Total trade and other payables B 5 REM R IR ARTE 93,501 91,282
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BB R M
the year ended 31 December 2018
T \F+-A=t-BLEE

Trade and Other Payables (Continued)
The following is an aging analysis of trade payables presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

24, B REMENERR (@)
R|EWEAEE - RERAWHES
52 B SN RRERR AT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —F—+fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT T

Within 90 days 90HA 18,843 21,123
91 days to 365 days 91HZE365H 1,680 18
Over 365 days HE365H 14 380
20,537 21,521

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables
are settled within the credit timeframe.

Contract Liabilities

BERMmZFHEEHROA - AEHE
EHEHEREREEBEK - AREERAE
FENRFIINREEERRAERN -

25. EHNEE

31/12/2018 1/1/2018*
R=Z-N\F —E-N\F
+=—A=+—H —H—B*
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET FAT
Prepaid treatment fees A RS 12,150 5,981
Sales of products EmiHE 10,466 4151
22,616 10,132
2 The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the application * ZRZ 2B ERE B ER 2
of HKFRS 15. 15RO BRI H] o
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RE KRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+A=+—RHLFE

Contract Liabilities (Continued) 25. EHEE W
The contract liability is the consideration received from the customers EHNEABEREEERPWIMZRE  BAX
which represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods and services EEEARBTRATPEERmIRE 2
to customers has not been completed. All the contract liabilities at the EH FUNZFBEHNAGBEEREAER
beginning of the year has been realised to revenue in the current year. ABA o
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract liabilities HERAEGHNEESERKTE L —MBX
recognised are as follows: RGBT -
—  Prepaid treatment fees - BHANEREA
The Group typically receives a 100% deposit before the services & B — 52 7 iR 75 7 46 BT 4 ER100%1%
commence. & o
—  Sales of products — EmEE
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 120 days to its AEEGRTEREEEHEERCES
trade customers who are qualified for credit sales. The credit period BP0 120B 2EEH - It EF
provided to customers can vary based on a number of factors ZEEBMAKEBEZERR (BEERZ
including the customer's credit profile and sales promotion policy. E AR RARSHER) B TR o
The amounts of consideration received in advance as prepayments by AEBRTFEEEHEEAR ZCEPIE
customers who are not qualified for credit sales are short term as the AIWERESEERTBNRIIBERE -
respective revenue is expected to be recognised within a few days when RAAGSWEBEHRNERINEF 2%
the goods are delivered to customers. R ER A TERR ©
Deferred Income 26. EFEU #R
2018 2017
—EB—N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Prepaid treatment fees BNEREE - 5981
Deferred income represents the receipts via credit cards, cheques and BEWSERNEFIHEHEXEAREMER
cash from sales of beauty services to customers and is recognised in the EAF XEZERBESWEZHRIE  E—
profit or loss once the services to the customers are provided. BmEFPRERGEINEEERER -

BAXEYRIRERAT —T—N\FFHR 175



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=+—RHLFE

27. Retirement Benefits Plans

(a)

Defined benefit plan

The Group's Taiwan subsidiaries participate in a central pension
scheme providing benefits to certain employees in accordance with
the Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan. The Group has
an obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the scheme
to pay the benefits earned by the employees. The Group currently
contributes at 2% of the total salaries monthly as determined
and approved by the relevant government authorities. Under the
scheme, the employees are entitled to retirement benefits equal
to two months' salary for each year of service for the first 15 years
and one month’s salary for each year of service following the
15 years, but not more than 45 months' salary in aggregate on
the attainment age of 60. No other post-retirement benefits are
provided.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the pension scheme
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. An actuarial valuation as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 was carried out by a qualified staff member of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan, who is a member of The Actuarial
Institute of the Republic of China. The actuarial valuation indicates
that the Group's obligations under this defined benefit retirement
scheme are 2% (2017: 2%) covered by the deposits paid with the
Bank of Taiwan, Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE KRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+A=+—RHLFE

27. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued) 27. RARERGFE @)
(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a) TEHREAE (B
The plan in Taiwan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as BENTESASEERZEBER
investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk. b2 - BlaniRERR - FIERER - &

Investment risk

RERR

Interest rate risk

AR E R

Longevity risk

REER

Salary risk

HERR

o

SRR M2 RER

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by
reference to the weighted average rate of long term government bond and long term bank deposit
rate. Overall market condition is also taken into consideration. The change of discount rate was noted
mainly because of the stable level of bank interest rate. The management of the Group considers that
the general environment of Taiwan will not be changed materially over the coming years over which
the relevant present value will be discounted. Currently the plan has a relatively balanced investment

in various financial instruments and assets.

ERBANE R ENRENRAE2E RABRGES KRBT ERN E N FHH =R
EBENMREAE - BERMBBEATAAZE - BRXBHTIEXINET - REDRRT
MENBEKF - AEEERERS  AEBERRENAREFETIGHRCHEBRES

RRIRMBAES - BAl > ZTEHEMEHEZREBTAREENHERE -

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset
by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

BEHFFNERDEIENABIEE - AW - BRI EBIRE RINIE M0 K o

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate
of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.
EREMNAZAENRENKL2EFE2RBENERERE AR 2R TR KEMFHE
¥ - HESRENTHRS MG BAE -

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries
of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s
liability.

EREMNAZAENRENKSEFEZRENRKFCRIE - Bt - SHEI2EENH
S48 DY T BB 1 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\E+-_A=+—HIFE

27. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued) 27. RKEFRGE (@
(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a) EHRBEAE (B
()  The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the () HEETHREGERAEAZ
actuarial valuations were as follows: FERKRMT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Discount rate BEIR & 0.90% 1.10%
Expected return on plan assets T &8 & 2 TEHAEI 3R 0.90% 1.10%
Expected rate of salary increases ~ TBHEAZF &1 hniEE 2.00% 2.00%
The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan BEAEERTEIEEZT
assets was HK$8,014,000 (2017: HK$7,945,000). B728,014,000% T (ZT—+t

£ 1 7,945,000/ 7T) °

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the defined (i) ERERRTPERZEHERE
benefit plans are as follows: FIFTEISREAT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

Current service cost IR A AR A AR AN 128 125

Interest on obligations (vl 147 131
Expected return on plan assets =21 &7 ~ FEHE R (86) (83)

189 173
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HE-_T—\F+-_A=+—HLFE
27. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued) 27. BIRERGFHE @)
(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a) TEHREAE (B

(i)  Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
(expense) in respect of the defined benefit plans are as

(iii)

EREM2E K (F)
ERZERBME BN

follows: T 3
2018 2017
—E-N\E T —+tF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
Remeasurement on the net BTt EERENAETE
defined benefit liability:
— Actuarial gain (loss) -EHFrEEA R R (BR)
arising from remeasurement 3,944 (1,089)
— Expected return on plan assets - 512 & &= 2 B Hi[01 ¥R 225 (37)
4,169 (1,126)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\E+-_A=+—HIFE

27. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued) 27. BERBEHETE &)
(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a) EHRBEAE (B
(iv)  The amounts included in the consolidated statement of (iv) BEFAZRERBARRBR 2
financial position arising from the Group’s obligations in ERENFEEE 2 AER
respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows: BB T
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Present value of funded BHFERRENER < RE
defined benefit obligations 9,313 13,569
Fair value of plan assets SEIEEC ATE (8,014) (7,945)
Net liability arising from ERRNEREEFEE
defined benefit obligations 1,299 5624
Level of funding at the end of the reporting period are as RERE R 2 R BINT
follows:
2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
% %
Level of funding KL 86.06 58.56
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27. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(a)

v)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE_ZT-N\F+_A=+—RHILFE

27. RIRERIEHE (&)
(a) TEEEBFIE (2)
V) REEHIEEAFEZE

obligations in the current year were as follows: T
2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
At 1 January Mm—H—H 13,569 11,138
Current service cost IR R AR A AR AN 128 125
Interest on obligations BEEFE 147 131
Benefits paid BEfEF (205) =
Actuarial (gain) loss BE (W) B8 (3,944) 1,089
Exchange differences on foreign plans  J@5Nat2IFE K = &8 (382) 1,086
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 9,313 13,569
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\E+-_A=+—HIFE

27. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued) 27. RKEFRGE (@
(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a) EHRBEAE (B
(vi)  Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current v) AEEFEEEATFEZE
year were as follows: T

2018 2017

—B-N\F —TtF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHER FHIT

At 1 January Mm—H—H 7,945 7,037

Contributions from the employer fEE K 189 173

Expected return on plan assets FTE1E E 2 TEHA B 86 83

Actuarial gain (loss) mE Nz (EBE) 225 37)

Benefits paid B2EF (205) -

Exchange differences on foreign plans  J@4Nat2IFE H =48 (226) 689

At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 8,014 7,945

Actual return on plan assets FHEIEE 2 ERREH 308 47
The directors' assessment of the expected return is based on EEMMERBHE R H IR
historical return trends and analysts' predictions of the market BRATEREZRSTEE
for the assets in the next twelve months. BEMBARRTZEAZE

BIHETT o
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27. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)

(a)

Defined benefit plan (Continued)
Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current Vi) REEFEEEATFEE

(Vi)

year were as follows: (Continued)

The major categories of plan assets, and the percentage of
the fair value at the end of the reporting period for each

category are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
r e R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T-\F+A=+—RHLFE

27. RIKBEREE (@
(a) EHERBFE (8)

gmT : (&)
A EHEFZ\IEEE‘JM&EA

%HﬁEQEPTEZEE Lt n

T
2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+F
% %
Deposits with financial institutions B BB TR 14.08 17.97
Short term bills ﬁ,ﬁﬂ%%’ﬁ 3.07 536
Stocks e 10.99 9.26
Bonds (EE5 8.23 1173
Others HAtb 63.63 5568
100.00 100.00
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination EXTHREBMALXEZRE
of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected R AR R K TE B H & 1

salary increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the

e AT BUERER MJHETE?
ERRNBEHEEEAZ

respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting GIEMEBEFEE M

period, while holding all other assumptions constant. MR N EMETE o

- If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher (lower), - R BE IR =12 0 Ok
the defined benefit obligation would decrease by A) 10018 & B A
HK$612,000 (increase by HK$691,000). E RN E B AR

612,000 7T (# 0
691,000/87C) ©

—  If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by - WREHFHEERIEM
1%, the defined benefit obligation would increase by CRA) 1% - Bl E 2843
HK$585,000 (decrease by HK$531,000). FIME TS 1535 1N585,00078

7t CRi4>531,000/7T) °
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27. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)

184

(a)

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(Vi)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows: (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end
of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used

in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

The average duration of the benefit obligation at 31
December 2018 is 8 years (2017:9 years). The Group expects
to make a contribution of HK$186,000 (2017:HKS$178,000) to
the defined benefit plan during the next financial year.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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(vi)
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WA E R o
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27. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)

(b)

Defined contribution plans

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE_ZT-N\F+_A=+—RHILFE

27. RIRERIEHE (&)
(b) EREGLEREE

0]

(if)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the HK MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the
Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan (the “TW MPF
Scheme”). The HK MPF scheme and the TW MPF Scheme
are defined contribution retirement schemes administered
by independent trustees. Under the HK MPF scheme and
TW MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% and
6%, respectively, of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (with
effect from 1 June 2014) for the HK MPF Scheme while there
is no cap to monthly income under the TW MPF Scheme.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the PRC government. As stipulated by the
regulations of the PRC, these relevant subsidiaries participate
in various defined contribution retirement plans organised by
the relevant authorities for its PRC employees. The employees
are entitled to retirement pension calculated with reference
to their basic salaries on retirement and their length of
service in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The PRC government is responsible for the
pension liabilities to these retired staff. The Group is required
to make contributions to the retirement plans which are
calculated based on certain prescribed rates and the salaries,
bonuses and certain allowances of its PRC employees. The
Group has no other material obligations for the payment of
pension benefits associated with these plans beyond the
annual contributions described above.

0

(ii)

AEERBE B GIMEARE
eatEHRA AR BB ERIE
PlEEEEANER BB R
SR EIERAEREE (BB
wEEEED  ZRESE
BE)E R (KIBE]) &L
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ke EREesrE Ex
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o EHREIREERES
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PR stEIH AR EFES
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BESTFERFEZ 2BR
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27. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
(b) Defined contribution plans (Continued)
The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$17,039,000 (2017:
HK$16,305,000) represents contributions paid on payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

27. ERBEHEE )
(b) EFEMRETE (8)
FFAB&m K B A17,039,000
B (ZF — £ F ¢ 16,305,000/
7o) DASEERRITEEHEE
BEYVINEE T PA S

28. Share Capital 28. IR
Number
of shares Share capital
RO E [N
HKS$'000
FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREE B BB
Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and R=—ZT—+F—H—A8 "
31 December 2018 —E—+F+ZA=1+—8HK
—E-N\F+ZA=+—H 4,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and R_ZT—+%—H—H8 -
31 December 2018 —T—+HF+_A=+—"HK
- )\F+=A=+—H 2,002,100,932 200210
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29. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders on 11
March 2002, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees. Under the Old Scheme, the Company may grant
options to full-time employees (including executive and non-executive
Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares
at a consideration of HKS1 for each lot of share options granted. Options
granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant. The Old
Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 11
March 2002.

A new share option scheme (“New Scheme”) with terms exactly the same
as the Old Scheme with different exercisable periods was approved at the
Annual General Meeting ("AGM") on 13 May 2011. Upon the approval of
the New Scheme, the amended Old Scheme was terminated at the AGM
on 13 May 2011.

Options granted under the New Scheme may be exercised during such
period as would be determined by the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) and notified to each grantee upon grant of the option, but in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option. The
subscription price for shares under the New Scheme may be determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will not be less
than the higher of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option,
which must be a business day; and (b) the average of the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant
option.

29.

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\F+ZA=+—HLFE

R El
BEBRERA-_ZTZEZ_F=A+—HES8
ZEBERZER  ARRRMT —BRK
EE (B8 xZEMERIER
HEEHTEEREEREES - BEBEER
g2l ARARAAARRKENBARZ
2BES (BERTESRIERNITES)
BREATRERDZRRE  SHIEER
BEZREBIATL - BEALTHERE
B AR ET28 A R TR 2 RRRAE o
EHszARBE T —F=At+—
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R-ZE——FRAAT=HABTZREE
FAE ((RRBFAE]) £ BRILE
ey R RBCERT & ([375181)) - #atdlz
R R E & 2 R 2 HEHETTE S
AR o pFTaT B ERER - RNAFTR
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29. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital in
issue or with an aggregate value in excess of HKS5 million based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of each grant must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

The Company may grant share options under the New Scheme to
specified participants over and above the scheme mandate limit or the
refreshed scheme mandate limit referred to above subject to shareholders’
approval in general meetings and the issue of a circular.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) must
not exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the Company (or the
subsidiary) in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under
any schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) if this will result in the
limit being exceeded.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding under the

New Scheme was nil.
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30. Deferred Taxation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\F+ZA=+—HLFE

30. IELERIE

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and

movements thereon during the current or prior years:

AEFSBEFERA L EERTEN IR
BE (RE) AREESEIIMT :

Allowance Other Undistributed
forbad and Defined  Unrealized short-term eaings of
doubtful ~Inventory  Revaluation Beneft profitson  temporary  Intangible  PRCand TW
debts  Provision of properties Liability ~ inventories  differences assets entities  Tax Losses Total
HERER
REREE AMEHER RERRZR
REGAE  FERGE EMME EEBENEE il 2B EWEE  AREN  BEER 3t
HK$1000 HkS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HkS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HkS000 HKY000 HKS000
Tt Thn T T Thn T TR Thn Tt Thn
At January 2017 NIB-tF
-A-A 369 2662 1051 697 2509 2% - (1090) - (686)
Bichange Realignment (B }{ 3% % 0 4 8 146 D) - (1069) - (591)
Credit charge) fo MERFEA (1R)
profitorloss 864 (34) = 190 (4%9) (3606) = (12677) = (16069)
Faming istibuted BAREH - - - - - - - 11483 - 11483
At31 December 017 W-E-E
t-A=t-H 1272 250 1093 956 2157 (621) = (13242) = (5803)
Bichange Realignment [E {35 (67 19 (13 ) %) (67 ) 49 1 ]
(Charge) crdit to RERR (18 A
profit orloss (485) 1540 - - 40 2605 19 (4784 394 35
Charge toother MR
comprehensive income - - - (797) - - - - - (797)
Aisngonacauistion  REWERBAR
of subsiares (note 3) ~ (fzE33) - - - - - - (4800 - - (480
Hfectof change intaxrate. FRRE &7 /2 - @ 8l 126 - (1) - (168) - g
Eaming distributed EAREN - - - - - - - 1278 - 12785
A3 December 018 WZE-\E
N 0 3993 1,161 259 2460 1916 (4281) (4970) 3976 534
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=+—RHLFE

30. Deferred Taxation (Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$35,730,000 (2017: HK$44,057,000) available to offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised of such
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Deferred taxation has been provided in full in respect of the undistributed
earnings of the Group’s PRC and overseas subsidiaries arising since 1
January 2008 as the directors consider that such earnings are estimated to
be distributable in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax has been provided
for in respect of the temporary differences attributable to such profits
amounting to approximately HK$35,215,000 (2017: HK$116,263,000).

31. Operating Leases
The Group as lessee
During the year, the Group made rental payments for office and store
premises under operating leases as follows:

30. IEIEBIIE (&)

RIpEHBEER  AEBBRSHH
TH 8518 4935,730,000/8 7T (ZE—+F ¢
44,057,000% 70) B] R {EH 85 R SR A o
R B & s A R REE AT - B &
HEANIBERBERRERIBEEE °

RNEBMEFRIE T BKREE RGN B R
AEZZEENF—A—BEMELZR
DIREF) - EL 2 BUEERIBRE - R
EAAEERABHABFGTRARER
AEDIR - ARBEREEGBETZ
BB R R E B IR 5 935,215,000
BIL (ZF—+t4F 1 116,263,000/ 7T) °

31. REHSE

REBMEREBEA
FA AKERBELHOMERBR
ENERVRASESOT -

2018 2017

—B-N\F —TtF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHER FHIT

Minimum lease payments =IEEERFK 19,454 17,485
Contingent lease payments AEERNRK 10,968 9,015
30,422 26,500
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31. Operating Leases (Continued) 3. KEHE )
The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBEREABEA (B)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for R EHABEER - NEBERET AT
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases HCERL 2 A EREEEN R 2 A E
which fall due as follows: REFEHRIERAT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHETT
Within one year —FR 15,517 20,038
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEEZFRF (RIEEREME) 10,517 10975
Over five years BidRF 1,388 412
27,422 31,425
The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic FTMEEAEEREELRE S KIE -
rentals, and do not include commitments for contingent rental payable, Y FABREEMNzHAREHAE (IE -
if any, when the amounts are determined by applying a percentage of REBEECEXAX Ao EES
turnover of the respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in ) REATAIgEALETER @A
advance the amount of such contingent rentals. LT
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31. Operating Leases (Continued) 31. KEHE )

The Group as lessor

Properties and equipment

Properties and equipment rental income earned during the year was
HK$2,254,000 (2017: HK$2,075,000) and the outgoing was HK$1,565,000
(2017: HK$1,488,000) for renting properties and equipment. All of the
properties and equipment have committed tenants for the next one to
five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments:

AEBEAEBEA

MERZRE
FRNRMAAG2MERRBEBHESKER
2,254,000/ 7T (ZZF—+t4F : 2,075,000/
TL) - MEWHERFRERY A1,565,000%8
T (ZZ— -+t 4 : 148800087T) ° N&E
BvHBENEREZERAR—ERFE
EREAM -

RBEHREER - AEEEBEP2F]
#z BREEBENKIT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+fF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT FAT
Within one year — &R 1,973 1,028
In the second year to fifth year inclusive F_EEERLF (BREEEMSF) 2,954 1,352
Over five years it N 581 859
5,508 3,239
32. Capital Commitments 32. EARAIE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—+F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT FHIT

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition 23] 4MBARNRER A A TSHRERBHE A RS

of property, plant and equipment B - BB Mk 2 BRI

contracted for but not provided in

the consolidated financial statements 92,127 34,088
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33. Acquisition of Subsidiaries 33. WEBEMHE AT
On 28 April 2018 and 31 July 2018, the Group acquired 100% equity RZE-—NFOHA -+ NBRERZZF—
interest of Shanghai Lixin Medical Beauty Clinic Company Limited NELA=1T—RH AKEBEBIE
("Lixin") and 100% equity interest of Beijing Jiayun Medical Beauty Clinic =7 5 Rl AR & R {E11,776,000% 7T &
Company Limited (“Jiayun”) at a cash consideration of HK$11,776,000 8,547,000 T g LB N EEERD
and HK$8,547,000, respectively from independent third parties. Lixin and FrER AR ([H1E]) 2 100%%E 2= &1t
Jiayun are principally engaged in the medical aesthetics business and ReHBEERNCHERAR ([%H])
were acquired with the objective of developing the Group’s medical Z100%HEz - NERSHEENRFER
aesthetics business. ERER  WEZARKEAREEE
REBEEXDH -
Considerations transferred EEENRE
HKS$'000
T
Lixin HiE
Cash He 11,776
Jiayun EAE
Cash B 8,547
Acquisition-related costs recognised as an expense in the current year RAFE R AR /U EE B A&
were insignificant. o
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the dates of acquisition are RUEBEEHNERBEEREEREAE
as follows: wm
HK$'000
T
Lixin s
Intangible assets B EE 11,158
Taxation payable FEREIE @)
Deferred tax liabilities EETIR A G (2,789)
8,367
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33. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)
Considerations transferred (Continued)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the dates of acquisition are
as follows: (Continued)

33. WEHMEBAT (@)

CERAE ()
REBEBRHMNERBEERCEREE
T (%)

HKS$'000
FHIT
Jiayun =i
Property, plant and equipment L EN e 138
Intangible assets mEE 8,042
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRIES 21
Taxation payable FERELIE (15)
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFRIR A G 2,011)
6,175
Goodwill arising on acquisitions: WEEEERIRE
HKS$'000
FHET
Lixin HiE
Consideration transferred EEEAE 11,776
Less: recognised amount of identifiable W TR BRI EE S E B RRSRE
net assets acquired 8,367
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEEAREE 3,409
Jiayun =8
Consideration transferred EEERE 7,168
Consideration to be transferred TR (E 1,379
Less: recognised amount of identifiable R TR AR B E S EC B ERE
net assets acquired 6,175
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEEAREE 2372

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisitions is expected to be
deductible for tax purpose.
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33. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued) 33. WK AR (&)
Considerations transferred (Continued) EERERE (&)
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition WEELNR SR FE
HKS$'000
T
Lixin 2
Consideration paid in cash RETMRE 11,776
Jiayun =i
Consideration paid in cash REZHHRE 7,168
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired W BWER e MR SEEMEH 21
7147
Included in the profit for the year is HK$365,000 attributable to the TS RBIN 5 EE A #9365,0007% 7T & 35 89
additional business generated by Lixin and loss of HK$749,000 generated B 4 B E538749,00078 JT 5t A AN F B iR
by Jiayun. Revenue for the year includes HK$2,644,000 and HK$999,000 Ao XREEWABENEREEDFIE
generated from Lixin and Jiayun, respectively. A H92,644,00078 7T £ 999,000 7T ©
Had the acquisitions been completed on 1 January 2018, the revenue and HkEEEA—E—\FEF—F—HE =
profit generated from the subsidiaries are insignificant, accordingly, no K B A TIEA WA &R
such disclosure is made. At - WEET B EEEE -
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34. Connected and Related Party Disclosures 34. BERBBMALIRZZEE
During the year, the Group had significant transactions with related FAN - AEEZEBBATETEAR
parties, which are also deemed to be connected parties pursuant to the 5 o BIBH RIS EMRAZEE -
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. The FRABABMATTHRRERBEEALT - F
significant transactions with these parties during the year are as follows: A AEBZHEZEATETZIEAR

SR
(@) Transactions (@ X%
()  Connected parties (i) BEEAL
2018 2017
—g-NF —TtF
Name of company Nature of transactions HK$’000 HKS$'000
NE BB REMHE FExT FHTT

Companies controlled by individuals who collectively
have joint control over the Company’s ultimate holding
company and are also executive directors
of the Company: (Prior to 3 October 2018, Note 1)

£ FEIL RN 2 AR RASIEIR 22 A1 [A] 43
AR ATBTTEEZ AN LHHEF LA -

(R—FE—=NF+H=HF * #fiE 1)

BEBERERBLRNAER AR Rental income 16 15
FEBRERELERNH BRI ez

EZRELERHERATR Rental income 16 15
FRETLERNERAT He W

Directors of the Company:

FRAEE

Dr. TSAl Yen Yu (Note 1) Rental expenses 7,028 6,902
s EEL (1) HEXH

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Note 2) Rental expenses 234 231
#REMIE L (PEE 2) HEXH

Fellow subsidiaries:

ES NI

RAREMCEERNDEBRAR] Sales of products 249 =
RARARELEHRNBRAF EmiHE

RAREIBROHBREAFR Sales of products 168 =
RS HBRNDERAF] EmiHE

REBERNBR AR Sales of products 3 -
EEBRRN AR EmiHE
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34. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

(a)

Transactions (Continued)

(i)

Connected parties (Continued)

Notes:

M

FEBRERE ZLRNEBRAR and FRELERNA
R 22 Flare controlled by Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu and Mr. LEE Ming-Ta.

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu became a substantial shareholder indirectly
holds approximately 22.24% of the total issued share
capital of the Company on 3 October 2018. Dr. TSAl was
re-designated as a Non-Executive Director and stepped down
from being the chairperson of the Board and been appointed
as an honorary chairperson of the Company on 26 October
2018. She resigned as Non-Executive Director on 25 January
2019.

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta resigned as an Executive Director of the
Company on 16 December 2018.

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng resigned as an Executive Director of the
Company on 16 December 2018.

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE_ZT-N\F+_A=+—RHILFE

4. BENRBEBAIRZIZ2HE

(&)
(a)

BAXEYREERAT

X5 (#)

BB AL ()
Wi

(i)

(M

SEBREREEBRNE
BRoEREREEERD
BERARHAEREFLR
FERE SE A PR o

RZZTE—-—N\F+A=H "
EREBEIRAMEREE
ARQAE B EITIRA2224%
MEZRRE - KELTFHE
BIERITEEWTBEL
BEEEXR IR _F—
NFE+A=-+BEZT
BARRRZBEER &
R=ZT—NF—A=+4h
HAEHEIENTES -

FHELEER T -NF
TZRA+RABERRAR
HITESE -

HEBELIR_T—/\F
T A+TRABEARRF
HITES -
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34. Connected and Related Party Disclosures Continued) 34. BERBEBHALIRZ Z2HE

(&)
(@) Transactions (Continued) (a) X5 (&)
(i)  Compensation of key management personnel (i) FEEEAEZHRH
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EERAEMETEERAER
management during the year was as follows: FAZMESAT
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Short-term benefits ySR=E Rl 8,877 8,265
Post-employment benefits B S Bt ER 221 250
9,098 8515
The remuneration of directors and key executives is ESREFETRABZME
determined by the remuneration committee having TEFME RS2 EER
regarded to the performance of individuals and market KARMHBERET -
trends.
(b) Balances (b) #5gk
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FER FAT
Amounts due from related JEW I H 50 — B 5
parties — Trade
RARETEBRNDER QA RRRELEHRNERAT 249 -
RARBHEROBRAA] RARBZEROHBRAA] 168 =
REBRROBRAF] REBRROBERAF 3 =
420 =
The normal credit term with related parties is 30 to 90 days upon RAfT1& - @ 2 —MREEHA308
delivery. Aging of all the amounts due from related parties was Z90H - RZZE—NF R FIEERKE
within credit period at the end of 2018. Bt 5 SIE 2 BRER I NMEE B -
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34. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

(c) Other Arrangements

0]

(if)

(iif)

On 31 May 2016, Beijing Zhong Ao Yi Natural Beauty
Cosmetics & Hair-Style Training Co Ltd (“Zhong Ao Yi"), a sole
proprietorship of Mr. LEE Ming-Ta, as lessor and Shanghai
Natural Beauty Fuli Cosmetics Company Limited (“Fuli’), a
wholly-owned PRC subsidiary of the Company, as lessee
entered into a lease agreement commencing on 1 June
2016 and expiring on 30 April 2017, at a monthly rental of
RMB86,000.

On 8 March 2017, Zhong Ao Yi, as lessor and Shanghai Yongli
Cosmetics Company Limited, a wholly-owned PRC subsidiary
of the Company, as lessee entered into a lease agreement
commencing on 1 May 2017 and expiring on 30 April 2019,
at a monthly rental of RMB86,000 before 31 May 2018 and
RMB90,300 afterwards.

On 30 March 2016, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, as lessor and Natural
Beauty Bio-Technology Company Limited, a wholly-owned
Taiwan subsidiary of the Company, as lessee entered into a
lease agreement commencing on 1 April 2017 and expiring
on 31 December 2018, at a monthly rental of NTD 3,000. On
16 November 2018, they entered into a lease agreement to
extend the term of the previous tenancy agreement of the
same subject matter for a period of one year from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2019.

e TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE_ZT-N\F+_A=+—RHILFE

. BERBBRAIRGZHE

(#)

(0 HAttzHk

0

(ii)

(iii)

BAXEYREERAT

RZE—AR"FRA=Z+—
H FHESEZBEDLE
IERPREEAEEAEE
RirEINBER AR (TR
) (EAEEAN) BARAR
FERKENEENB AR L
BEARAEBEBKBERA
Al (BBl (ERAMEA)
IV EWZE BZE— N
FRA—HARERE=T—
tEmMA=+HEM AMA
A AR #86,0007T ©

RZZFE—tF=A\B " HF
BE (EALFAAN) BARAHR
FEAENEZEMRBAR L
BB EmAERRARA (1E
RAEMBAN) STLHEEWRZ -
BE-_ZT—+tFAA—HELE
MEZZFE-NFHEA=+H
Ewm - —FE—N\FRA=T
— B a1 B A& AR 86,000
T - BB A AR90,3007T °

RZE—R"F=RA=+H"
BEHELT ((FREEA) &
KARRENZEWNBAA
BAZEUREROERA
Al (fERAMA) FIZHER
#FBEZT—tHFHmA—H
EHER=ZF—-—N\F+H
=+—HE®m - AEAEHA&
#3000 c R=ZF—N\F+
— A+ B HEITLEE
Wk - WEEEEREBH
AMEEBENFESH—F - 8
—E-hhF—H—HBEBEZ
T NE+—_A=t+—Hlik-
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RE-F-\F+-A=t-RALEE

35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

200

A summary of the statement of financial position of the Company is as

35. AQ T ZMBMRR =R
AARZBERABREELT :

follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —F—tF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHExT T
Assets BE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR ZIRE 169,398 169,398
Amounts due from subsidiaries A EENGIE ] 77,541 78,805
Other receivables Hfth e U AR X 810 1,743
Bank balances and cash IRITEFERIES 747 2,533
248,496 252,479
Liabilities BE
Other payables EAbETERR 1,862 1,928
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERIBTB A RIZIAE 35,459 37,972
37,321 39,900
Net assets BESE 211,175 212,579
Capital and reserves A& %
Share capital N 200,210 200,210
Reserves (Note) A (BdsE) 10,965 12,369
211,175 212,579
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(Continued)

e R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\F+ZA=+—HLFE

35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 35. &2A B Z AR R R (@)

Note: 5 -
Retained
Share earnings/
Share options (Accumulated
premium reserve loss) Total
REEF
RIDEE RREEE (RHER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT THT THT
At 1 January 2017 W_ZE—tF—-—H—H 41,016 11,109 7,122 59,247
Profit and total comprehensive income RNER RN R LA
for the year - - 113,690 113,690
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 14) BRED RIS (FizE14) = - (160,568) (160,568)
At 31 December 2017 R=ZF—tF+=-A=+—H 41,016 11,109 (39,756) 12,369
Profit and total comprehensive income ANEEZEW BT
for the year - - 94,697 94,697
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 14) BRED RIS (FizE14) = - (96,101) (96,101)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+=-—A=+—8 41,016 11,109 (41,160 10,965

36. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued

share capital, retained earnings and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt.

36.

BEXRERER
AEEBBEREAERASEETE
BRENFELEEN  TEEZTSES
LAt - BRI EFIMHEAER -
AEE 7 BERKEEFAR -

AEBERNGEBRRATIRAESEE
MARKNRRIFER ANEE#ERE - BED
BATRAN ~ RE R N M E A 6 o

RRBEEFGFF—ERFERER -
R Ll R —R  EX@ERE
ERARZRERZEARR - RIEE
FrEE ARESERRTBE %
TR R R RETHER 2
A FEEBRELRERS -
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37. Financial Instruments 37. @®iTH
a. Categories of financial instruments a. =TI EAEEH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortized cost/ REENATENERMEE
Loan and receivables ER R LR
(including bank balances and cash) (BIERITEENRES) 262,835 398,008
Financial liabilities TRas
Amortised cost BESHAR 27,017 28,884
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HERBEEBEERBEX

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash and trade and other payables.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and impairment
assessment and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management of the Group manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group has limited exposure to interest rate risk because
the Group has no interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities
other than bank balances. The future variations in interest
rates will not have a significant impact on the results of the
Group, as the Group's variable-rate bank balances are all
short-term in nature. Therefore, no interest rate sensitivity
analysis is presented.
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37. Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk
The Group has bank deposits denominated in foreign
currency which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The management considers that the Group is not exposed
to significant foreign currency risk as the majority of its
transactions are either denominated in functional currency
of the Group’s subsidiaries or in USS$. Since USS is pegged to
HKS, the foreign currency risk is minimal.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which may cause a financial loss to the Group arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to

cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.
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37. Financial Instruments (Continued)

204

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new customer,
the Group uses an internal credit system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits to customers are reviewed regularly. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017:
incurred loss model) on trade balances individually or based on
provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Other receivables

The credit risk of other receivables is managed through an
internal process. The Group actively monitors the outstanding
amounts owed by each debtor and uses past due information to
assess whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial

recognition.

Amounts due from related parties

The credit risk of amounts due from related parties is managed
through an internal process. The credit quality of each counterparty
is investigated before an advance is made. The Group also actively
monitors the outstanding amounts owed by each debtor and uses
past due information to assess whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition.
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37. Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and cash

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks and pledged bank deposits with good reputation.

At 31 December 2018, the ten largest trade receivable balances
accounted for approximately 28% (2017: 26%) of the trade
receivables and the largest trade receivables balance was
approximately 7% (2017: 7%) of the Group’s total trade receivables.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
are mainly the PRC, which accounted for 91% (2017: 89%),
and Taiwan, which accounted for 9% (2017: 11%) of the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2018.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL.
Except for debtors with significant outstanding balances, the Group
determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a

provision matrix, grouped by past due status.
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37. Financial Instruments (Continued)

206

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and cash (Continued)

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group uses
debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its product sales
because these customers consist of a large number of small
customers with common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed collectively based on provision matrix as at 31 December
2018 within lifetime (not credit impaired). Debtors with significant
outstanding balances with gross carrying amounts of HK$5,386,000
as at 31 December 2018 were assessed individually.

Gross carrying amount
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b.
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Average loss rate

Trade receivable

FHBEE EZEWERX

HK$'000

FHET

Current (not past due) BNER (R@nfA) 0.19% 64,231
1 - 180 days past due B ZE180H 0.45% 2,366
181 - 360 days past due #H1812360H 0.58% 810
More than 360 days past due #61 B E360 B 9.64% 500
67,907

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to

ensure relevant information about specific debtors is updated.
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37. Financial Instruments (Continued)
b.
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37. €@ T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies b. MERKBEEEERBE (&)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) FEERRRBEFNME (B)
Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and cash (Continued) HHFRITIES RITAERE S
(%&)
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group provided BE_ZT—)\GF+_A=1T—8"
HK$186,000 impairment allowance for trade receivables, based on REEFE ZREBER TR R EBE
the provision matrix. Impairment allowance of HK$2,177,000 were FeE 42 4 186,000/ JT. &Y & B B 4 o
made on debtors with significant balances. B ¥ A ERABRRRIEL 2,177,000
IRV B -
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that TRINTREGE(LERE 5 EWER
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified RERERZ FTHEBEEBENE
approach. g o
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
FHITEH FHITAH
FEEE FEFE
(FEREE) (FEERE) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
As at 31 December 2017 and R=-ZB—tHF+=A=+—H
1 January 2018 R—ZE—-NF—HA—H - 5,089 5,089
Changes due to financial instruments  ER— A — B iR @
recognised as at 1 January: TEREE) :
— Impairment losses recognised — REEEER 48 - 48
— Impairment losses reversed — REEERE = (4,542) 4,542)
— Write-offs — hieH - (462) (462)
New financial assets originated R EEEERN 2,341 = 2,341
Exchange adjustments PE 5 FE R (26) (85) (111)
As at 31 December 2018 R==B—N\E+=H=+—H 2,363 - 2363

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings.
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37. Financial Instruments (Continued)

208

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and cash (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment assessment, other receivables
and other financial assets are considered to have low credit risk
as the counterparties to these financial assets have a high credit
rating. Accordingly, for the purpose of impairment assessment for
these financial assets, the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12m ECL. In determining the ECL for other financial assets
at amortized cost, the directors of the Company have taken into
account the historical default experience and the future prospects
of the industries and/or considering various external sources
of actual and forecast economic information, as appropriate, in
estimating the probability of default of each of the other financial
assets at amortized cost occurring within their respective loss
assessment time horizon, as well as the loss upon default in each
case. The directors of the Company consider the credit losses on
these financial assets are insignificant as at 31 December 2018.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on its
operating cash flows as a significant source of liquidity.

The Group's remaining contractual maturity for its trade and other
payables falls within 30 to 90 days as at 31 December 2017 and
2018.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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38. Particulars of Subsidiaries 38. B A RS
Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2017 and 2018 are RZE—tFR=E—NF+ZA=+
as follows: —RB - AAFIMBARGEAT :
Registered capital/

Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of

incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity

AMALR  aMER/BRG AAARENEAR
ARER agny  REREERRA FeCRTRAEELA AEEER IERH

Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B& 53 B% 53

w8 N7 W18 07 08 N7 W8 W7
SRNE ZFF ZR-NE B CRNE CTLF CRNE 3R

Shanghai Natural Beauty The PRC 15529,980,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Production and sale of skin care and
BioTechnology Company Limited* R BIARE 299800007 beauty products
(Formerly known as Shanghai Natural EERFERERFAER

Beauty Cosmetics Company Limited)
LEEREERRARAT!
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Bio-
Technology Company Limited)
(A LBaREIERAR)

Shanghai Natural Beauty The PRC RIB8,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Wholesale and retal of skin care and
Sanlian Cosmetics Company mEARE AR80000007 beauty products; provision of
Limited*** beauity treatrments and Spa services

HaanE=RERARAR HERBEEEREAER

REERER KBRS

(Chengdu Natural Beauty Cosmetics  The PRC RMB2500000 - - - 100% - - - 100% ~ Sale of skin care and beauty products;
Company Limited** PEARE AE5000007 (Notea) (Notea) provision of beatty treatments and

RAEREERBRAT (k) (Hi¥a) skin care and beauty consulting and

training

HERRRAER  RRRE
e EE ]

Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli The PRC 15514800000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Production and sale of skin care and
Cosmetics Company Limited®™ AR 148000007T beauty products, aroma-therapeutic
LEefE=B HaERAR products, provision of skin

treatment, beauty and Spa service
EEREEEERFAERR
RRERREES 25

Rk
Shanghai Yongli Cosmetics The PRC RMB10,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products,
Company Limited** REAE  AREI00000007 aromatherapeutic products
BB RRRRAT HEREREAERRERER
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Talwan NT$201,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care and
Company Limited aE F12%201,0000007 beauty products
BAEEMRERNERAR EERHEERRFAER
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38. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued)

210

38. fIB A AFHE (@)

Registered capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
ARRYE  EmER/ERf ARARANEAE
R fEn¥  RYRZERRE FeERTRAT LA AEEE ELE
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B# 53 B 53
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 217 2018 2017
ZE-NE CELF 8N CFAF SN CTF RN SRR
Huei Yao Investment Company Limited Taiwan NT$122043420 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% ~ Investment holding
BRRARDARLT RE FaBnmT REER
Ray-Sen Medical Cosmetics Taiwan NT$50000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provision of beauty consulting and
Company Limited aiE HA%500000007 training
A REEAHRCERNARAR REERERRB R
Belem Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR68,609858 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Belern Holdings Sdn.Bh. SREE Clss B shares RERR
MYR10000
Class A shares
6360935675 1Bl
100005 AR
Billion Synerqy Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR2 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Wholesale of skin care and beauty
Bilion Synerqy Sdn. Bhd. SRRE Pt products
HEEERFAER
Great Glamour Company Limited BV US$50000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Great Glamour Company Limited ~~ RE&BREE S0000%TT RERR
Next Success International Limited BV US$100 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Next Success Intemational Limited ~ EB&#BRHS 10057 AR
Fortune Investment Global Limited ~~ BVI 15550,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Fortune Investment Global Limited ~ 2B B RHS SO000ETC RERR
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Hong Kong HKS10000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% ~ Sale of cosmetic products and
(Hong kong) Company Limited &% 1000070 provision of beauty treatments
BREEMNR (FE) BRAR HEVHERRRIFAER
Natural Beauty China Holding Limited - Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
BREEERERAA = 200007 REER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Bio-Med ~ The PRC US$2,600000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of health
Company Limited* REIARE 260000057 supplement
LEEREENRERRAR! EERHERER
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38. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued) 38. B A RIFE (@)
Registered capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
ARRYE  EmER/ERf ARARANEAE
R fEn¥  RYRZERRE FsERTRATELA AREE: E: 4
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B# 553 B% 53

2018 017 2018 017 2018 2017 2018 017
ZE-N\E ZEtF 28N\ ZT-tF E-NE Tt ZB-N\F ZE-tF

Shanghai Natural Beauty Hall The PRC RIMB1,000,000 - - 100% - - - 100% - Sale of skin care and beauty products,
Cosmetics Company Limited** ~~ EIARE AR10000007T aroma-therapeutic products

HEEREER SRR HEEERFAERIENER

Shanghai Linxin Medical Beauty The PRC RMB4000,000 - - 100% - - - 100% - Provision of medical beauty service
Clinic Company Limitec*** REARE ARE40000007T and sale of skin care and beauty

EENEBERAD HERAG products

REBRRAREREEER
FEaER

Shanghai Jiayun Medical Beauty The PRC RMB2,000,000 - - 100% - - - 100% - Provision of medical beauty service

Clinic Company Limited™** hEIRRE ARE20000070 RUBEZARE

LEEREREADMARA ™

Notes: FiEE -

@  The subsidiary is deregistered during the year ended 31 December 2018. (@ ZMBRAREREILI—Z—N\F+_-A4
=+ —HIEFERUEEM -

2 These subsidiaries are foreign investment enterprises with limited liability * Z LB R RLA R BIRRERK 8B R

established in the PRC. BENERE -

*  The subsidiary is a Chinese-foreign joint venture established in the PRC. > ZMEA R R —ERH BRI A F
SNEERE -

**  These subsidiaries are domestic limited liability enterprises in the PRC. o ZEMBARARFBIKEANEBR
EEDE-

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities outstanding at the AR F AT - BE 4 () B /2B

end of the year or at any time during the year. NRIBBEITEMEARERE . EHEESF ©

BAREYRIBRERART —T—/\FFH 21



Financial Summary
Hyf 75 481 2
7N =
Results 4
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T-NFE —F-AfF —FTF —FTtF ZEB-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FABT FAT FExT
REVENUE 'ON 505,761 506,913 475225 399,579 369,525
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB A s A 116,274 170,392 196,217 146,738 39,157
INCOME TAX EXPENSE FrERiEX (44,794) (33,562) (47,814) (41,350) (12,898)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEER 71,480 136,830 148403 105,388 26,259
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO: TR AT EEAREERF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY RATEEA 71,480 136,830 148403 105,388 26,259
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEIER R - - - - -
71480 136,830 148403 105,388 26,259
Assets and Liabilities EERERE
At 31 December
B+=B=+—H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“TFE —T-—HF —T—RF —T+F ZEB-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FExT FAT FExT
TOTAL ASSETS BmEE 977,730 888,597 822,186 777,885 678,966
TOTAL LIABILITIES wmes (203,824) (155,969) (167,513) (1271390 (127,111)
773,906 732,628 654,673 650,746 551,855
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS ~ Z<2A Bl#EE A FE(L#EZS
OF THE COMPANY 773,906 732,628 654,673 650,746 551,855
212 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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